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B LCT ata glance

Living Cell Technologies Ltd {ASX:LCT} is building a specialty
pharmaceutical company to supply. develop and
manufacture cell therapy treatments to restore health in
patients suffering from life-threatening diseases. LCT has
built an internationally recognised infrastructure and team,
with a suite of products ready to enter human clinical trials.

The company is in a significant competitive position.
Reliable celi supply, intellectual property rights, regulatory
data and expertise offer considerable market advantages for
shareholders. The company operates in Australia, New
Zealand and the United States.

LCT focuses on developing treatments where healthy living
cells are injected into patients to replace or repair
damaged tissue, without requiring the use of toxic drugsto
prevent rejection.

The company’s product portfolio focuses on treatments
for people with Huntington’s disease, insulin-dependent
diabetes and haemophilia.

The Team

- LCT Management posesses decades of experience in
developing preducts from research phase through to
commercialisation, with established global pharmaceutical
and business credentials.

- Product development teams have global expertise and
over 243 combined years of experience in virology.
neurobiclogy, molecular diagnostics, quality assurance and
regulatory affairs,and IP management,

Core Capabilities

- LCT's competitive advantage includes the company’s
breadth of knowledge in cell therapy, access to high health
status pigs, and expertise in the microencapsulation of cells
to GMP manufacturing standards.

- Proven characterisation and manufacturing scale-up
capability of LCT's proprietary alginate encapsulation
technology (biocapsules).

- LCT's Auckland island pigs are of the highest health and
disease-free status, free from viruses commonly found in
pigs from most parts of the world.

+The NZ team has GMP accreditation for preparing islet cells
for diabetes treatment.

- LCT enjoys a strong patent position with eight main patent
families and broad claim patents granted in major markets.

The Products

- On track to submit US Food and Drug Administration {(FDA)
Investigational New Drug (IND) applications for phase 1
human clinical studies for two portfolio products.

- Long term safety and survival of transplanted pig cells to
humans confirmed - live cells producing insulin found in
patient nine years after transplant.

“Biotechnology uses celfs to manufacture its products.

In celf therapy, the living celfs themselves are the product.”
Dr. Scott Burger, Industry Consultant, Advanced Cell & Gene Therapy

- Successful use of DiabeCell™ product in pre-clinical
primate diabetes trial showing safety and efficacy.

- NeurotrophinCell product results reveal dramatic reduction
in size of brain lesion in primate models of Huntington's disease.

- Strong discovery pipeline as well as drug delivery devices
applicable across disease types.
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B Highlights 2004/05
®
_LCT has achleved a :number of sugnlf‘cant business mile-
' ,stones dunng the past. 12 months
August 2005 - '
PY ; Closure ofa 523 mlllaon share placement
o July 2005 - R
=} v
- Successful complet:on of pre-chmcal NeurotrophinCell
primate tnal
+  Secured the support of Hunting Party Securities, a niche
o investment firm based in New York
June 2005
« Invited to present at American Diabetes Association
65th Scientific Sessions and Bio Relationships
- May 2005
® . Acquisition terms for the Theracyte drug defivery device
i and the Pancell Ltd dlsease free pig production facility
and herd approved
April 2005
+" Successful completlon of- pre clmlcal diabetes trial
® . . ',(pnmate model) o
. Nine year survival of, transplanted Tslet cells in diabetic
(' demonstrated (human patlent)
Long term survnval of choroid plexus cells in brain
revealed (rat model)
® Corporate head off'ce estabhshed in Melbourne, -
Australia
March 2005
Paris Brooke appointed as General Manager in Australia
® : +  Letter of intent with Thesacyte Inc and Baxter Inc to
’ acquire the rechnology and mtellectual property rights
of Theracyte Inc
February 2005
- Nick Geddes appointed as Company Secretary
® November 2004
Long term sofety of pig cells transplanted to humans
supported in a study published in the Journal of
Clinical Microbiclogy
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| 'Clhairman's Report 2 :

Few compames can claim they are a fully mtegrated

ompany able to compete on the’ wodd stage,

LUI has built its capabllltles,|nfrastructure andteam

torbe exactly that. From cell supply. production,
virology, product de\relopment R&D and

treatments for Ilfe-threatenmg human dlseases. and thus

grow a very significant business with very good future

e ums to our shareholders.

2004/05 has provided a year of strong development for the

compahy, where our two lead products have progressed

towards clinical trials. !

AéM are being implemented on time and on budget.

¥ ¥ H
Th?e-@()ﬂ#ﬂfi financial year saw many significant

adzievémeots,for LCT. The most important of these was the

[ L g 4 .
cornpletron of the pre-clinical Huntington's disease trial,

enablmg us to progress our NeurotrophinCell product

towards 3 himan clinical trial in 2006. We are also very

encour‘agecl by our recent DaabeCeII finding of the
long-term. safety and function-of insulin producing cells in a

paltienl nme years after the initial transplant.

Ih;e ) 'npany hopes to announce further positive resuts for

thé-DtabeCell product as it moves towards completing
pri »—dlrncalmmkm e

In Septemﬁer 2004. gve  annoudnced our intention to make a

tashiess—pl rc‘niase ioi“t‘he assets of Theracyte’s device

tefhnologf—subjec»tnto shareholder approval. At a General

Meeting_in;May_ 2005, the purchase was confirmed.by our

shareholdets and itis expected the drug delivery devices

will open up new dlsease targets for LCI'

The purchase e plg herd and facilities of PanCell Ltd was

alsa :mnrnvr;,

y_LCLsharehoIders in May 2005. The

¥
exj anslon of LCT's ptg productlon capabilities will ensure an
ongomg and |ncrea§ed supply of dlsease~free pig cells and

di aerslfy the risk by housmg the herd over three full SPF clean

pig facl'lltles

Market Opportumtv

The ma rket._oppor.tmnie for.LCT's. products are significant.

Accordmg to marketiresearchistudies, the sales potential for

the Hu ntlngtons disease treatment market could have a

vaIue af $933m. Diabetes|is recogmsed as a global epidemic

(World}Health™ OrganisatnonI &vathithe revenue potential of

the currenbtype«l« abetlcw—market estimated at U5520 bil-

Ilon The cum’nt.aver!age cost of hlglman islet cell transplants
is approxlmateiy USSISO 000: and the continuing revenue

od eople could amount to

o)}

manufacturing, LCT is building'the capabhility to offer

Irm pleased to advise that strategies anfiounced at the 2004

Pancfeas transpiants have been
completed wlth success in recent
times but there -
shortage “of ‘donor organs. The
severe shortage of donor organs

- for- dlabetes treatments also paves
the way for aiternatlve solutions to
_meet wrnﬂgrjget _Qemand something
LcT is‘add.ressi'ng. :

is a chronic

LCT-is thus in a strong commercial

position due to its comprehensive
cell therapy patent portfolio and

product development cycle when
o compared to its competitors. LCT's
encapsulation technology enables the reatment of
Huntington’s dlsease. stroke and type 1 diabetes without the
use of |mmunosuppressant drugs, which have hindered the
effectivéness of alternative treatments.

B
§

Future ﬁem‘cel[:technoloﬁy also opens the possibility of
LCT sencapsulatlon technology complementing its eventual
developrnent

Performance Review

An increased number of institutional investors have
supported the stock throughout the last financial year,
expanding our shareholder base in Australasia, the United
States and Europe We will continue to look for other
appropriate funding as we approach phase 1 dinical trials
for our two lead products.

An ‘important objective of the Board is to strengthen the
company’s shareregister through encouragement of long
term institutional -investments, including participation of
international investors with experience in the biotech sector
as well as local institutional investors. LCT has engaged the
New-York based Hunting Party Securities to boost our profile
to shareholders: and potentlal investors in key North
Amencan capltal ‘markets, as well as in Australia, during the
coming 'year. The company continues to discuss potential

“licensing and “collaborative opportunities with a range of

interested parties.
- . i
Corporate Governance

The board is committed to maintaining compliance with
contemporary principles of good corporate governance and
best practice recommendations. We continue to adhere to
the ASX/AusBiotech Reporting Guidelines and are grateful
for the input of pur scientific panel who will continue to
provide an invaluable independent review of our research
initiatives and development procedures.

In summary, | believe the future of LCT is extremely exciting.
During the coming year | expect LCT to make good progress
with our two lead products and be in a position to announce
major outcomes which will greatly enhance the underlying
value of the share price.

[ ]
Michael Yates, Chairman

n‘---
-




M CEO’s Report

I am pleased to have the opportunity to share with you the
company's significant accomplishments of the past year.

LCT continues to progress as we move towards the beginning
of phase | clinical trials for our NeurotrophinCell and
DiabeCell products.

Pre—clinical studies of NeurotrophinCell has demonstrated its
ability to protect cells in the brain from damage caused by
simifar conditions to Huntington’s disease. Similarly, the
results from the DiabeCell pre-clinical studies have been
extremely encouraging. The doses of DiabeCell in primates
showed safety and efficacy and the company is now in the
process of completing the necessary pre-clinical work and
documentation to support our regulatory FDA application.

We will also continue to direct resources to our pig and cell
processing facilities to ensure a sufficient supply of cells. We
have taken the strategic decision to temporarily concentrate
the resources from the Fac8Cell development program into
the other two lead product programs as they approach the
phase | clinica! trial stage.

Over the years LCT has developed a policy of attracting the
very best people in its research and management teams to
create the best opportunities for increasing future value for
the company's shareholders. Qur operations in Australia,
New Zealand and the United States are ideally located to
capture market opportunities and also attract prospective
research and development partners.

Before | first met with Professor Bob Elliott back in 1987,1 was
already well aware of the difficulties in managing a chronic
disease. | had witnessed first-hand the struggles my young
son and other family members had endured when they
were diaghosed with diabetes. | was determined to find a
way to find a cure, rather than just treat the symptoms.

As we move towards the beginning of phase 1 clinical trials,
LCT's programs are focused on improving the quality of life
of people afflicted with diabetes, Huntington's disease,
stroke and haemophilia. All the programs are based on celi
therapy with the product being injected into the human
body through a relatively simple medical procedure. The
unique LCT technology means that ne immunosuppressive
drugs are needed, eliminating the harmful side-effects of
many ather alternative treatments.

The cashless acquisition of Theracyte was also an important
strategic investment as we seek to position LCT as one of the
world's leading cell therapy companies. The Theracyte
devices provide an additional cell therapy delivery platform
with potential applications for the treatment of additional
diseases, such as multiple sclerosis and cancer.

In closing, | want to acknowledge the contributions of the
entire LCT team. The company’s people in Australia, New
Zealand and the United States provide a strong foundation
for future success. it is their expertise which allow us to meet
our milestones and advance our products towards the
marketplace. We will continue to work hard as we strive to
become one of the world's leading cell therapy treatment
providers and provide rewards for our shareholders.

David Collinson

Chief Executive Officer
Living Cell Technologies

Health Statistics

independent research reports suggest the potential
markets for these products are substantial. There is no
current cure for Huntington's disease, a hereditary genetic
condition which affects 30,000 people in the United States
and 1,200 Australians.

There are expected to be 23.7 million people world-wide
diagnosed with type 1 diabetes by the year 2010,

We hope (o begin offering these people a treatment as
soon as possible.
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o B Looking Ahead

+ Develop regulatory IND submissions
for phase 1 dlinical trials

@ + Aggressively pursue value-add
collaborations and licensing
opportunities

- Advance the discovery program B oy e
pipeline with relevant companies Progress ( I‘I 2004/05 goals ]
Py and institutes ' . . ‘4 . o .
’, 'Compfete lPO f
+ DiabeCeli - moving towards i

completion of pre-clinicat work , ¢« ~ IPOcompletedin September 2004 N
. . KA One of only two blotech companies whlch listed in 2004 o T
’ NeurotroohlnCell - advance planning “be tradmg ‘above, its Itstlng pﬂCE (source BioOracle EG Capltal)
® of the clinical trial program for 2006 -
::' Progress towards phase 1 clinical trials ‘
- Increase awareness of LCT amongst i . : ) . .
international investment community, ~ On track - IND applications being prepared for lead products .
. . L AT - : o
with a3 VIEw to cbtaining support for R “w DiabeCell - Insulin-dependent diabetés - Pre-clinical
the clinical trial strategy o o N . . .
o phase nearing completron primate trial data re!eased
o « Expand the specialised disease-free - NeurotrophlnCeII - Huntmgtons disease - Pre-chmcal .
{SPF) pig facilities in New Zealand S phase completed primate trial data released -
and extend herd breeding and s S :
selection capabilities T Product ptpellne ) , .
_ -—Renewedfocus T Y . o
® = Coilaboratrons belng f‘nallsed to expand product pipeline

T Haemophalla treatment (FacBCe!I) R&D program scaled back
wtlé enable greater resourcing of two léad products T i
7. X ¢ ~. ) . .

;T Partnermg Lo
- .

i d_xhgence on potentlal optrons contlnues, wrth a view
towards a Iater-stage partnenng model




" M LCT World-Wide
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] Rhode Island, USA

Pre-dinical, regulatory

* Product development « Regulatory affairs » Clinical studies  Business development
- « CP and liver pre-clinical studies - Biomaterials / encapsulation - Transgenic / primaite studies

® _ Perugia, Italy

= Clinical trials / materials research

\ Auckland, New Zealand

Discovery, development

- Celf sourcing, monufacturing - Diabetes pre-clinical studies - GMP monufacturing
® - SPF Al pig herd - Virology
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B APipeline of Developments

LCT Development Portfolio

NeurotrophinCell
= Pre-clinical small animal and primate studies completed

« Meets guidelines of ‘orphan drug’ for potential
accelerated trials

- Reqgulatory IND application under preparation for
approval of human clinical trials

DiabeCell
«  Pre-clinical small animal research completed

= Primate studies ongoing

- Regulatory IND application under preparation for
approval of human clinical triafs

Fac8Cell
+ Discovery and pre-clinical studies to continue

Discovery Programs
« Collaborative discussions in disease areas continuing

« Delivery device applications being assessed

Product Development Process

Obtaining US regulatory Food and Drug Administration
(FDA} allowance to market a new product requires. strict
review. Laboratory and animat studies are initially used to
assess the safety and therapeutic potential.

Encouraging results will prompt the company to file an
Investigational New Drug Application (IND). If the IND is
approved by the FDA and an Institutional Review Board,
clinical trials can begin.

The clinical trial program involves three phases. In phase |,
the goal is to demonstrate safety. Phase !l targets not only
expanded safety trials but evaluates product efficacy.

It is possible in biological products to sometimes combine
phase I/l studies. At this point, a meeting with the FDA will
normally be held 1o discuss the development process, any
concerns and the protocols for phase il

A New Drug Application (NDA) is filed at the completion of
phase ll.The FDA consults with various advisory committees
to evaluate expert advice on safety, effectiveness and
labelling. Once approved, the product can be marketed with
FDA regulated labelling.

LCT's products are not formulated drugs but are based on
live, natural cells. The products however will still follow the
standard regulatory protocols and clinical trial process.

Accelerated development

During the clinical trial program, accelerated development
and review of the therapy treatment can be obtained if it
satisfies the critetia outlined in the Orphan Drug Act.

Orphan drug status is granted to therapies being developed
for the treatment of rare diseases or conditions {less than
200,000 incidences in the US) where there is no current
therapy or where current therapies could be improved.

*Because orphans serve a smaller population, they require fess
data; thus it’s possible to have a fairly quick approval.”
Marlene E. Haffner, MD, MPH

Director, Office of Crphan Products Development, FDA

Mr Alfred Vasconcellos o ) ) o
Presrdem& CE : : o

he progress of, the cornpanys .
v developments The LCT regulatory team are ) '
experienced in dealmg with the FDA and in prevnous

o ‘appointments have negotiated cell therapy products
through the relevant regulatory processes. -

5 " Verbal dISCLISsIOns have already been held between
. members of - the ter regulatory. team and senior.
" membérs of the FDA to discuss the pre-IND and -
-" IND applrcatlons T ) RS

-- . . woE, ot

How far away i L(_T from fi Img rhe iND apphcotrons?

_At the tlme of wrmng, CI' is preparmg iND packagesq‘
for both our- lead products, NeurotrophinCell and
DiabeCel. Current expectauons are that the: formal
pre-IND meetmg will occur in the fi nal quarter of
2005 followed by the f'Img ofth ‘IND apphcatnon b

e e

.‘[Whatare the rmphcations ofa suc .ssfuf e "f
INDapp!rcatron? ST

R ‘Entering ‘diritcal trlals in 2006 for any one of our.
‘ products W|II be a srgmf'cant rmlestone for LET
hdatron of the companys technology
’platform 'whlch 5- app!lcable across ‘3 number o
disease’ areas

wall LCT app yf rorphan drug sratus’

: Huntmgtons dlsease lis a rare disease affectmg
30000 people |n the United States and 1,200, in* .
Austraha It ha no current cure or treatment. :

. LCI" is lnvestlgatlng the ellglbrllty of the
NeurotroptheII product for orphan drug" status
and we are working closely within the gmdehnes
set by the. FDA . Orphan status entitles the company
“t0'a’ range 'of incentives “induding 'a period of
market exclusw:ty, US tax benefii its, R&D assistance
and p_nomyt__re_vlew destgned to accelerate the
approval.piocess.

13




t = -+ Diabetes is a chronic disease characterised by high blood

N Y """i ~glucose levels resulting from the body not producing insulin

I, i orusing it properly.insulin is a hormone needed for glucose
to enter the cells and be converted to energy.

L *For. every one.who knows they have diabetes, another
: has it but doesn't know.”

; Dlaberes Ausrraha

-_ ~  i-There are two main types of diabetes. LCT aims to treat
R f_Jnsuhn dependent diabetes, {type | and 28% of type 2
P - dla‘b_e_tlcis). Type 1 diabetes occurs when the pancreas gland
! . no. longer produces the insulin needed. It is usually
P

_ dlagnosed in childhood or early adulthood and is one of the
most common chronic childhood diseases in developed

" { "hations; The build-up in glucose in the blood deprives the
1 "cells of 'enierdy and over time can impact eye, kidney, nerve
; or heart functioning.

1. The chronic disease can have a devastating effect on an
* individual and their family. While the secondary effects of the
jhwd'_féé'ase‘fare'Hciei)mf'litating, it is the rigours of managing the
. disease ‘which can also exact a large physical and psychclogical
) ""'t61l'Ré§i.'|léFtrear'ment usually consists of a number of insulin

Rt e = plans and physical activity.

For chlldren dlagnosed with diabetes they can expect a life

Pricking their finger and drawing blood before every meal,
""counting the carbobydrates in everything they eat and
i ensuring they have the right food and fluids with them at all

o ve---- s-times is a necessary way of life from the moment they

.1 . .. Larediagnosed. .

T4 Gm desperate for a cure. At Living in fear of misjudging their

i some stage it's probably going blood levels is a significant burden

~to-kill-me, so anything | can do for adults, but for -children the

ito mitigate that is worthwhile.” pressure is even more immense.

! Peter, type 1 diabetic The carefree childhood which is

i normally taken for granted is an

" impossible reality for children, adolescents and young adults
struggling to manage the demands of type 1 diabetes.

) LCI' strives to give patients, and their families, a treatment for
insulin-dependent diabetes which will give them control of
their lives once again.

“r- injections every day, blood glucose level tests, healthy eating -

’ “where they require multiple daily dases of artificial insulin.

“it takes over your fife, you can’t do anything without
thinking am | doing the right thing. I need to constantly
control my blood sugar levels and think how long is it to
my next meal. If 1 go for arun ot bike ride | have to bring a
snack with me and make sure  have glucose tablets with

‘me at all times.”

Michael, type 1 diabetic -

Health Statistics

- The World Health Organisation has described diabetes
as an epidemic, estimating 300 milfion people will
be diagnosed worldwide by 2025.

« [t is estimated that approximately 4.9 mitlion people
{in all age groups) have type 1 diabetes.

- European region, 1.27 million

- South East Asian region, 0.91 miltion

- United States, approx 1.3 million

- According to the US National institutes
of Health (NIH), an additional 30,000
Americans develop Type 1 diabetes every
year, 13,000 of whom are children.

Type 1 prevalence is 1.7 per 1,000 people in the US

- 13 million pecple - 6.3 percent of the
population have diabetes (diagnosed only).

Diabetes is Australia’s fastest growing chronic disease.

520,000 Australians are diagnosed with diabetes.

Only 1,000 to 1,500 whole human pancreases are
available in the United States each year. if only the islets
are used, three to four adult pancreases are needed

per procedure, narrowing the humber of potential
recipients to enly 250 to 500,

Market Data

. Diabetes-related drug sales are expected to jump 12%

annually through 2011 worldwide (compared with
industry-wide growth rates of 6%).

- 20% of US healthcare $ spent on d:abetes re!ated
health problems.

Treating type 1 diabetes is a $32 biltion anniial market
opportunity (US alone}.

.

"+ The revenue potential from existing type 1 diabetics is
Uss20 bitlion,

.

Market will bear U5525,000 cost per sucgessr’ul istet
cell transplant.

- Continuing revenue stream from newly diagnosed
people could amount 1o US$600 million annually
{Frost & Suflivan).

*The diabetes market appears poised to post
accelerating growth over the caming years.”
C shibutani, analyst, J.P. Morgan




B DiabeCell

A seaweed-derived coating (alginate encapsulation) isolates
the transplanted pancreatic cells from the patient’s immune
system and eliminates the need for toxic immunosuppres-
sant drugs.The protective membrane has pores which allow
nutrients and insulin to pass through the alginate coating
but protects the islet cells from being attacked by the
recipient’s immune system.

The extremely limited availability of suitable human istets for
transplantation makes the use of pig islets a viable and
important therapeutic alternative. Pig insulin is almost
identical to human insulin and has been used clinically for
aver half a century.

These healthy coated islet cells are injected into the body via
a simple medical procedure under local anaesthetic. The
cells produce insulin and help regulate blood glucose levels
appropriate to the amount of glucose detected in the
bloodstream of the recipient.

LCT scientists initially undertook an eight week study and
transplanted the coated islet cells into mice with diabetes
and demonstrated the ability to treat this disease. The cell
implants were also shown to survive for eight weeks in
healthy monkeys. This proof of principle demonstration
allowed the primate studies to proceed and also confirmed
the safety of the implanted porcine cells. The results were
presented by LCT Medical Director Professor Bob Elliott at
the International Transplantation Association meeting in
Vienna in September 2004.

Controlled primate studies demonstrating safety and
efficacy are an important part of the information required by
regulatory bodies such as the US Food and Drug
Administration (FDA} before allowing trials in humans with
type 1 diabetes.

“DidbeCell is a porcine pancreatic cell product for the treatment
of insulin-dependent {type 1) diabetes and 28% of type 2 diabetes.”

were implanted with LCT's
proprietary encapsulated islets
and the remaining eight
received empty capsules.
The DiabeCell treatment was
well tolerated with no adverse
reaction in the treated
monkeys and their insulin
requirements were reduced.

LCT also reported the nine year
survival of encapsulated pig

Product Developments

- Preparing submission of pre-IND
for phase 1 clinical trial

- Successful safety / efficacy of
DiabeCell in pre-clinical primate
trial obtained

- Authorised pilot human trials
conducted in New Zealand

« Long-term function of islet cells in
human patient {after 8 years)

islets in a human patient with
type 1 diabetes at the 2005

; in bload glucose levels
International Pancreas and

- Reduction of extreme fluctuations

Istet Transplant meeting in
Geneva. In 1996 a human clinical trial for an early prototype
of the DiabeCell product was approved and carsied out in
New Zealand. After the treatment, the Auckland man
achieved better control of his diabetes and his required
insulin dosage was reduced by as much as 34 per cent.

“The isfet cell transplant reduced my need for insulin by
about 30 per cent. My immune system became more robust.”

Michael, DiabeCell recipient {pictured below}

An inspection of his abdominal cavity nine years later
revealed a small number of intact capsules and the presence
of insulin. While the results were for only one patient, it
demonstrated the effectiveness of the encapsulation
technology and that the cells continued to produce insulin
for a number of years.

LCT has since adopted the best features of the prototype
istet technology and further advanced the effectiveness of
the proprietary encapsulation as the DiabeCell product
moves closer to the phase 1 human clinical trial stage.

“ had o whole lot more energy. a whole lot more feefing
of wellbeing, my blood sugars were more controlled. it
knocked out the highs and lows which means you can
fead a much more normal life”

Nikki, DiabeCell recipient

The company then completed the world's largest controlled
diabetic primate pre-clinical study of its kind. The DiabeCelt
study used 16 monkeys with diabetes, eight of which
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| product will have the capacity
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~Huntington’s disease

“ [*-Health Statistics

' - Prevdlence of more than 1
¢ -~ per-100,000 people in the
Mestem world

. «_. Over:30,000 Americans have
HOD and over 200,000 more are
at risk of inheriting it from
“aparemt v v

[

b

T WAustralia about 1,200°

- j»———-people now have HD and

_approx. 6,000 are at risk
) |

Market Data

| ¥
“|i T Annudl édst to'US héaitficare”

~ -estimated greater than-! -

P

1 H t
= The market wifl bear the cost’
1. 0f $30,000 per treatment

b
b
.-
f

7_-__ L_C[@lj_Ngu(orrophinCeIJ .

»

patients and 100% of
_hew patients

.~ Estimated safes potential of ;
$933 million
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“toinitially treat 25% of existirg ~

Huntington’s Disease

Huntington's Disease {HD) is an
inherited degenerative - brain
disease with the symptoms
gradually warsening over time,
The disease is genetic and usually
strikes between the ‘ages of 30
and 45. Every child: of -an HD
parent has a. 50. per. cent risk of
inheriting this genetic disease.

Patients can be diagnosed prior 1o
the symptoms surfacing. In.its
earliest stages, the patient’s mind
remains relatively clear as their

| body begins to fait. :

.The uncontrollable. movements
and' difficulty walking ‘signal
‘the onset of the disease and
reventually lead to behavioral
changes, dementia’ and severe
-motor impairment:

Symptoms include involuntary

'| ‘jerking movernents of the limbs,

‘face and trunk;increasing difficulty

e ~with communication, swallowing
. and walking; problems with, planning, organisation and

: initiating, as well as personality change.
. - RS BRI

HDis ultimétely fatal and there is presently no known cure or
. effective treatment. Whilst the physical signs of grimacing,
twitchiness_and impaired co-ordination are the most

obvious, the psychologicai effects should not be

disregarded. Sufferers of Huntington's Disease are often
victims of severe depiession, with many refusing to go outin
public once the symptoms begin.

16

Many sufferers have described the affliction as having a
healthy mind trapped in a body that is slowly breaking down.

Stroke

Stroke (also known as cerebrovascular thrombosis or
haemorrhage) occurs when the supply of blood to the brain
is suddenly disrupted. When blood stops moving, the brain is
deprived of oxygen. Brain cells in the area die and damage

may be permanent.

One of the common misconceptions of stroke is that it is a

condition isolated to the elderly.

Contrary to popular belief, over 50
per cent of strokes strike people
under the age of 75 and around S per
cent of stroke victims are under the
age of 45.

AFL footballer Angelo Lekkas {aged
27} was perhaps the most high
profile stroke victim within this
under 45 demographic in Australia
in 2005.

He suffered a stroke whilst playing
for his club Hawthorn in a pre-
season practice game but recovered
sufficiently to resume playing later in
the year.

There are now approximately
220,000 Australian stroke sufferers
such as Angelo fiving in the community
and the numbers are projected to
rise in the years to come.

Many are not as fortunate to have

recovered in such a stunning fashion.

Stroke

Health Statistics

" Stroke is the third
largest cause of death
in Australia and the
United States

- 48,000 people
experience a stroke in
Austrofio each year

«  This number s
predicted to rise to
74,000 by 2017

+  Ofthe 48,000 people
that experience a
stroke each year, one
third will die in the first
12 months

- Approximately 220,000
Australian stroke
sufferers are living in
the community




M NeurotrophinCell

! --:Q&A‘

‘A choroid plexus (brain) cell product with the potential to N ) L e
treat diseases of the nervous system such as Huntington's . Dr Dwa, ne Ememh o, B
disease and stroke.” l Vrce-Preﬂdenr of Research W 1 i
: LT, BroPharma
LCT's NeurotrophinCell treatment implants new choroid : What are chon O‘dP’EX“S cefls? " T

plexus cells into the brain. Choroid plexus cells produce i
spinal cord fluid and a range of protective proteins e
{neurotrophins) to help repair and protect the brain

Chorotd plexus cells’ Are responsnble for producung ‘
the fluids that surround and bathe' rhe brain as well

j " as supply:ng the nurturing-and. protectwe factors"
from damage. : found in that ﬂuld ;

The cells are encapsulated in a clear bio-capsule derived Where dre rhece!n's sourced’ L )
from seaweed. This encapsulation hides the cefls from the - 4 :
patient’s immune system yet allows the passage of nutrients The. cel!s used were from speaa!ly—bred plgs in New
and chemical signals necessary for functionality and Zealand. The pigs afe quite ynique and have none of
survival. The cell treatment is transplanted into the region of the common viruses or diseases. They are kept,in
the brain predominantly affected by Huntington's disease, very dean facilities, under 'strict regulatory and
known as the striatum, or other sites close to the brain ethical guidelines. Human chormd plexus cells are
region that are damaged or diseased. also being considered.

The NeurotrophinCell product is capable of protecting brain Wh‘"d'd the trials ’"VDMJ

tissue that would otherwise die, potentially forestalling or
even preventing the debilitating consequences of neurode-
generative diseases. The product has the potential to treat
diseases such as Huntington’s disease and stroke and may
also prove to be beneficial for a range of other neurodegen-
erative diseases including Parkinson's, Alzheimer's and
motor neuron disease.

The mals used Iwmg natural pig braln cells (the cells
that produce a range of protective proteins), coated
ina seaweed-based gel.The get capsules contammg
the. v:ells ate |njected into the brarn in the striatim .
region; -which is usua!ly the regiogn affected by
Huntlngtons Quinglinic acid, a naturally occurring
compound that in high concentratlons kifls a similar

At present, the company is submitting a pre-IND application .
to the relevant requlatory bodies for permission to conduct ’
a clinical trial in the United States, The trial would involve the What wefe the resu!ts?

injection of a small volume of the capsules onto the brain of : e : -

patients who already experience symptoms of the disease. Results indicate that the cells produce a COtha'I
This trial would initially be for fewer than 10 patients to test °f prc}tectwe p“"e'”s and factors that act to protect
for safety of the procedure. LCT has the unique opportunity the cells that have been damaged ffom Huntington's
to potentially design treatments that can intervene prior to D:sease. o . ..
the onset of degeneration from Huntington’s disease.

<

|njected to the’ stte to mimic the effects of HD 2

LY

Isxthe expected nmefmme grven rhe human
A ' rrmls are approved7 k
There is no other neuroprotective cell transplant product
targeting the treatment of Huntington's disease itself, not
just the symptoms,

Itis hoped that if the initial human tnal shows a
positive result the product will be fast-tracked .to

. enable a Iarger patlent trial much faster than is -
. normal SThe' company belleves this could SEE -
approval ofa product within 2- 3 years

Wit done in Austratio?
Product Developments . wi tn‘a!sbe on in Austrat N

At present,the Austrahan regulatory body has a hold )
on any human trials involving animal cells {called -
'xenolransplantanon) The company believes that
‘there is now sufficient infarmation available to show
that there.is not an elevated risk in using these cells.
The -company “will continue to talk with the
regulators to see if Australian human clmlcal trials
will be poss:b!e in the future.

» Pre-clinical results revealed that brain cell damage in
primates treated with NtCell was five times less than cell
damage in control animals affected by HO {approx. 50 per
cent cell death versus 10 per cent}

- Data from pre-clinical studies with animals receiving
NeurotrophinCell transplants showed 86 per cent less
damage to the brain and dramatically improved limb use.

kind of neurons that dle in Hunungton s dnsease, was '



B Theracyte - A Controlled Drug Delivery Device

—— ;,._
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|
* 37 ' Earlter this year, LCT announced it had entered into a letter of
— -~ . -intent with Theracyte Inc and Baxter Inc to acquire the
:  technology and intellectual property rights of Theracyte Inc.
!
— The Theracyte technology and patents
- -——The-'l'heracyte Deal cover a family of small, thin, pillow
- haped devi hich ca i
-Cashfess transfer of the s Ialpe c‘ljew?esv\; : d nb;ﬁlfe:_walh
Theracyte assets to LCTin | €675 aNG placed under the skin to
- | exchange for the issue to deliver -dgugs and therapeutic factors.
.. Jheracyte shareholders glew&es are used to treat a wide

af300 000 shares in L(:'?' '_

iange- of diseases without requiring
frequent injections, immunosuppressive

-30000000pnons to drugs, or external pumping machines.
ﬂ"{é’;ﬁ;ﬁgﬁt‘;ﬂﬂiﬁs Membranes protect the enclosed
future regulatory tissues from rejection by the patient's
approval for the first immune system but still allow the
Theracﬁg producr therapeutic to freely diffuse from within

the device.

The te'ch-nology was initially developed by Baxter Inc and
then spun out into Theracyte, a stand alone company

" focused on cell therapy. The device suite is a result of over a

decade of development {and an investment of US$90
million) and is already approved by the FDA for clinica! trial
cgll app!i_ca_lion;. Most importantly, the devices have been
shown to be safe and effective in humans for up to one year.

— LR

Under. the terms of the letter of intent, current Theracyte

shareholders including Baxter, will receive LCT stock and a

future royalty on product sales in return for the cashless

‘tiénsfqr of The}acyte assets to LCT. The assets cover the
~ family “of ‘devicés and include the technology, a significant

patent portfolio, data, equipment and an inventory of raw
materials for manufacture of the devices.

The acquisition will provide LCT with world-wide protection
for the use of live cells in 3 wide range of therapeutic devices
and opens up a.new expanded range of disease targets.

LET sﬁafeﬁoidars-(:bnﬁrhed the acquisition at a Special
General Méeting held in Sydney in May.

Theracyte Drug Delivery Device

: Professor Bob Elllott. B . P
. ‘Medica!Dlrector -0 B R PR

et

‘ Descnbe Themcyres drug dehvery dewce '

L The dewces arelikea permeableteabag ‘They can be
filled with cells and placed under the skm or .
elsewhere'ta refease drugs and bioactives, © . - R

They are miﬁirﬁa[ly-invasive can be filled or replaced *
'eaSIly and offer a controlled method of drug delivery
that rnay be applicable to treatlng a srgnlfcant range

' of diseases. -

[ . . .
o . .

.How do rhe devrres differ from LCT (3 rurrenr produrrs? o
: 'TheTherdcytedevtces complement ourcunent dlgcrete v

. . -alginate microcapsules which are ‘Best for products’
like DiabeCell for diabetes and NeurotroptheIl for_
'Huntlngtons dlsease - ) '-," 2

e

’ The thin ﬂat'!heracyte products w:II enabieaddmonal _
cell types to be placed in tocauons wuthm the body, -
'such as under . the skin, Together the comhmed .
. delivery methods fusther demonstrate tha‘l tca ls .
2 one of the most significant. cell therapy companles ..,
. in the world ‘o

Whar addmonai benef its do the devices offcﬂ

L The device has the potential to treat diseases where .
+ onfya small number of cells are needed. It also
N pmwdes LCT with the opportunity for collaboratton
" |n addmonal disease areas such as haemophlha,,
E cancer and multlple sclerasis. The markets. for the
‘ devrce could be substantial.

" Whet does the Thetacyte deal mean?

. Theracyte provides LCT with an alternative cell .
_ delivery system with FDA clinical trial approval It:
expands LCT's ability to supply live cell products to
the international market and potentially speeds up -
the process to start human clinical trials in additional
areas. The' new technology adds enormous value to
LCT 'shareholders and cements the cohpany’s
reputation as an international cell therapy company. -
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B Explaining LCT's Technology —
@
*LCT focuses on developing treatments where healthy living cells are injected into patients to replace or repair
damaged tissue. LCT's alginate encapsulation {sea-weed derived coating) technique ensures no fife-long toxic immunosuppressive
drugs are needed by the patient.”
@
Parcine and human cell sources
- High health status pigs (NZ)
+  Free from common viruses
[
Adheres to FDA (US regulatory cell source
body) standards
®
[
\ “ « Live cells examined and tested to
| ® @ ensure safety and function.

| = Live cells passed through a sea-weed
| derived liquid to cover the cells

I (alginate microencapsulation). encapsulation

! +  Each capsule about 0.5mm
N @ diameter {size pin-head), contains
100's to 1,000 of live cells.

- Theresulting capsule prevents the
celis being recognised as foreign

by a patient’s immune system.
‘ stimuli nutrients

' therapeutic agents

! + Capsules provide protection from the
immune systern

) * Nutrients can pass into the cells,
|“ hormones and insulin can pass
from the capsules into the body.

« The cells are not recognised as
foreign and are happy and safe
® within the body,

* Immunosuppressive drugs antibodies & immune cells
‘ are not required.
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. - —
—— —un »-.. DISCOVGW Pfogfams ’ Bisease Indication Discovery Preclrcal [ND Phaset
; '
.w,.j R S : Huntington's
® s B E NeurotrophinCell | 5 " e
oy : e R
T TTLCT develops live, injectable celf therapy products to
; replace or repair damaged cells, for the treatment of fife
- -1 .-Lthreatening diseases. Type 1 Diabetes -
R S S s U
T DiabeCell®  |i T - i
i Ly )
@ . ! ir .
; ~ Strong Research Capability Haemophifa |- =~ -
_-—{' A A Fac8Cell '
N I Living Cell Technologies possesses a technology platform
. . .1 _lLand cell supply applicable to the reatment of a number-of
; ! disease areas. In addition to the two products nearing the
¢ | clinic, LCT owns two drug delivery mechanisms and
® ) : maentaans a strong research and discovery focus. Strong
0 * : pipelme_ growth allied with a patent portfolio in the major
* 1 -tjurisdietions, and the potential to out-license encapsulation, Market Data - Haemophilia
- +Theracyte technology and a secure cell supply puts LCT in an o
., 1 extremely favourable market position. +One of the mosr.expens:ve diseases to treat fover
.. ) $110,000 per patient per year}
. .r..,...._' [ P
o In t.he financial year 2004/05, LCT management undertook - Occurs in 1in 6,000-10,000 males internationatly (1,800
[ J 1 T the'strategic decision to focus on the NeurotrophinCell and in Australia)
- *i*'DiabeCf%-Ii-products based upon market factors. The high
i | unmet medical need, large waiting lists and profitable * Replacement clotting factormark.er_sizeis US$200 million
Lol ! pricing imodels provide solid market opportunities for for Haemophilia B and over US$ 1billion for Hoemophifia A

. LCT's products.

P ‘ ) Collaborative Programs
. —A‘number of “other research discovery programs remain ‘

: actwe and |m:|ude the treatment of Haemophilia, Stroke, 1.Virology studies
. _;: . Amyotrophlc Lateral Sclerosis (ALS), Central Nervous System

| (CNS) T rau ma an d Spinal injury. Flisabeth Macarthur Agricultural institute, Australia

Robert Koch Institute, Germany

S Haemophnha

; ' " Massey University, N2
* * N . - . »
) { The most advanced ‘of these discovery programs is the Forte Dodge Veterinaria, Spain
o © 37T ~Tueatment for haemophllsa Haemophilia is a blood clotting o . . . o .
E -} disorder in- which orie of the essential clotting factors is s ‘v_lrology group 15 consistently investigating pig
1 deficient. Contréry to bobular belief, a person with retroviruses and provides data to the US Centre for Disease

Control. Professor Joachim Denner of the Robert Koch
Institute has contributed greatly to investigating the risks of
infection from xenotransplantation. He has measured

haemophilia will not cut themselves and have blood
ﬂow:ng from the wound.The bleeding is mostly internat and
regu!ar treatment is'given by injecting the missing dlotting

° . factor |nto the veins—- - antibodies to porcine endogenous retrovirus (PERV) in
; L., humans and primates who have received islet transplants
: FacSCell from the LCT pig herd.
LCF's Far.BCell product uses pathogen-free liver associated Professor Roger Moris of Massey University is an
. cells (hepatocytes) to produce factor 8 required for blood internationally recognised expert on pig diseases and has
o clomng The algmate encapsulatlon isolates the transplanted contributed significantly to understanding the potential for
PY cells from the patient’s immune system, ensuring no human infection from the LCT source herd. LCT is invalved in
’ * unpleasant side-éffects from immunosuppressive drugs. Professor Morris’ study of pig circovirus type 2 (PCV2) as a
oot otential cause of pig multisystemic wasting syndrome
The implanted liver cells may also be applicable to other P o P13 . i - 9 &
disarders th;t arise from abnormal liver function. Research (PMWS).PCV2is a virus found in all pigs tested by LCT except
Loy o T T ) the LCT herd sourced from the Auddand Islands.
and development is continuing and the rate of development
" is expected to accelerate after the NeurotrophinCell and LCT has also conducted a joint study with Dr Monica Balash
® - * DiabeCell products advance 10 the clinical trial phase. of the Forte Dodge Veterinaria, Research and Development
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LCT is conducting discovery / pre-clinical
progtrams, or is in collaborative discussions
on the following programs;

~ALS

+CNS trauma

* Multiple sclerosis
- Spinal injury

« Stroke

Department in Spain on the prevalence of PCV2 in some
New Zealand pig herds. LCT currently uses the Virology
Laboratory at Elisabeth Macarthur Agricultural Institute in
Sydney to perform serological tests on PCV2 and
Mycoplasma hyopneumonia for routine herd screening and
for the PMWS study.

2. Encapsulation technologies

University of Perugia, ltaly
Vanderbilt University, USA

Encapsulation techniques have been greatly enhanced
through LCT's strategic relationship with the Department of
Medicine and Endocrine and Metabolic Services, University
of Perugia, Italy and Vanderbilt University.

The alginate encapsulation procedure used to immuno-
protect LCT's porcine islet cells was developed in
conjunction with Dr Riccardo Calafiore and his colleagues in
Perugia. The material used is licensed exclusively to LCT.

Another collaborator, Professor Taylor Wang of Vanderbilt
University in Tennessee, USA has also developed an
alternative encapsulation material and technology. Results
from the pre-clinical trals utilising LCT xeno-cells and Dr
Wang's encapsulation technology may also provide the basis
for further Phase | trials in the US.

3. Huntington's disease and stroke programs

8rown University, USA
Georgia Medical College, USA
Rush Presbyterion Medical Center, USA

LCT's neurobiological group worked with a number of
institutes and leading research personnel {including Dr
Caesario Borlongan at the Georgia Medical College, Dr Kim

Boekelheide at Brown University and Dr Jeffery Kordowerat

the Rush Presbyterian Medical Center in Chicago, lllingis) to
progress its NeurotrophinCell product in Huntington’s
disease and stroke models.

4.0ther programs

Auckland Hospital, NZ - joint study which aims to identify
the prevalence and dinical significance of the Hepatitis E
virus in the human New Zealand population,

Brown University, USA - polymer chemistry investigations.

Kiwi Ingenuity Limited, NZ - using spedcialist expertise in
surface carbohydrate antigens and recently developed
techniques, LCT's pig herd was blood typed, allowing a
selective breeding program to provide cells less likely to
be rejected.

i



B Our People

An International Team

LCT has purposefully assembled the best technology,
resources and people from around the globe to create a truly
international cell therapy company.

Using decades of expetience in cell therapy from companies
such as Diatranz, CytoTherapeutics, Pfizer, Alkermes and
Neurotech, LCT combines three world-class groups into a

single operating company.

LCT's Auckland-based team is focused primarily on early
stage research and the manufacture of products for pre-
clinical and clinical studies. The experienced and dedicated
virology department supports the specific pathegen-free
breeding facilities, clean rooms and research laboratories
and hosts the world’s most advanced porcine herd for
therapeutic transplantation.

L.CT Research Capability

The combined experience of LCTs team:

718  scientific articles published
243 combined years in research
104  patents

£9 products supported through
clinical trial phases

The muiti-disciplinary team Jocated in Rhode Island has
been assembled from experts with more than half a century
of combined cell-based product and regulatory experience
and the proven track record in bringing products to
commercialisation.

The wholly owned US subsidiary contributes to LCT's
product development, regulatory and clinical affairs,
business development and commaercialisation efforts.

The Melboutne office was established to enable better
access to its shareholders and the local Australian
investment community. Combined with their counterparts
in New Zealand and the United States, the result is a world-
dass staff with the experience and capability to shepherd
LCT's products from conception to sales.

Dr Olga Garkavenko, PhD

Awarded:

International Scientist of the Year - 2004
International Heolth Professional of the Year - 2004
International Biographical Centre, Cambridge

Dr Garkavenka is Head of Molecular Diagnostics at
LCT%s Auckland R&D facility.

BVSGMACYSBAgr . L

Chref Vetennarran . o o
: ~ ' ’ ! "j : . +

Why useprgcefls’ v : s L

We arg’” usrng pig ce!ls as they have the fol[owmg
echaracterlstlcs‘ s :

-They aré mampmalian cells which have beeﬂ proven tu
" functronnfor years in the alginate capsuies m humans
- and: animals. > -

- Pig celts fol]ow a w:de vanety of brotoglca[ products
" séurced from pigs.” Pig insulin, -clotting factors and -
_heart_valves have successfully been used in human
medicing for many years. Pig islets and. other tlssues
haVe ° proven to he physlologncaity compatrble
with humans IR =

‘ ‘Through mvestrgatlon over the past 304 years. LCI' has
: conf rmed that the Auckland |sland disease free pig ls a
very safe source of tissues.” -+

- -

-LT and others throughout the world have concefitrated
a Iarge amount of research mto retrovaruses of pigs, ,
_which ‘were . of concernﬂ ‘lhere are many pig herds
which have been fested and found to be nosn-transritters
caf PERV LCT's 5 Auckland Island plgs in particutar have
heen shown to be non-transmltters of PERV

<

Why are rheAuck!and Is!and pigs sd rmporranﬂ .

ULCTs Auckland Istand pigs are arguably the ‘most
disease free pigs'in the world. Thorough dcreening for’
disease at quanerly intervals has demonstrated that
they are free from the mrcrobtal pathogens of pigs,and

Porcme Clrcovrruszfree A
v Py
I e )

‘ How wn we Jmdge the Iugh heairh sta tus of the plgs"?

The ot Mrology Department has submltted samples
' to recogmsed experts in the USA Australia, Germany,
Canada and Spa'n and (helrﬂndmgs have been conﬁrmed

A} .ot " s

' ‘Haw does LCT miitigate the risks a‘f contamrnatmnf

Teige

3, pathogen»free sterlle enwronrnent

pathogen free prgs, and productron ,hr__qh quahty

IR T 5 . 1

% i

Dn‘\Fergusonc o e T

.indeed are the. only known herd it the worid whichis -

The prgs must ‘be’ rassed in lsoIatnon from all other .

; E porcme ceﬂs f L(_T's research and development programs o
o .

ot ',-’. Wt s aem ’,.._.. m,.,.-.m-c._a._a__..-......

[
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B Management Team

{Full bios are contained on page 31)

Mr:David Collinson

CH;'ef Executive Officer

Mrlgo[linson is Chief Executive Officer of Living Cell

t . - - . -
Technologies with extensive experience in government

and requlatory advocacy, business management and capital

ra:smg".'i‘

+
b

Prof Robert Elliott

~Mexdical Director
i

Professor Elliott is Medical Director of Living Celt

Teéhnollogie; and a world leader in diabetes and

au1onm{nune related research.

: _—
H

H

T [
Mr. Alfred Vasconcellos

President & CEQ, LCT BioPharma inc
t

Mr{Vasconcellos serves as President and CEO of LCT BioPharma,
-with large pbamlxaceutical and clinical trial expertise.

Vo
Dr Pau!’!’an;'——j
Managing Dicector._. ..

Drfam | il's" Head of LCT ;s‘New Zealand operations.

Dr{Tan was Eprevaously Chief Executive Officer of CenTec Ltd

and foufndin'ig Deputy Director and Head of the health division

at Genesis Research & Development Corporation Limited.

: e e
H { -
Helhasihad.wide_experience on all aspects of assessment

.s o . .
and selection _of{products for commercialisation, expansion

of inu'elleciual praperty, product development and

managing eritical piiths%timelines and establishing and

ma nagmg mternlatlcmal parmershups

: H
Or Tan! has; be In w:seargch feltow, associate professor in
imnuniology and al physmlan rheumatologist and has

worked in Car\ada, Australla. S:ngapore and New Zealand.

He' holds patents relatmg to the therapeutic uses of
o

™ .roblal produc(s I 1
i

i T 1
i +

D Dwailne Emerlchw..iﬂ.. fome
Vi

e Pre;rdenr of Resquch P
, |

E
Dr mench |s V’é’e Plesudelnt of Research for LCT BioPharma.
-I~H ]o:n]ed LCT from,Sertoll Technologres Inc, leading the

company's research efforts to develop and commerdialise
Sertoli-based cell products. Prior to LCT, he was also Director
of Biological Research for Alkermes Inc and Cyto
Therapeutics Inc. Dr Emerich had contributed to almost 200
scientific articles. He is currently a member of several
scientific journal editorial boards and has lectured across the
United States and Europe.

Mr Richard Justice
Chief Financial Officer

Mr Justice is a qualified accountant, with post-graduate
business management qualifications and extensive
experience in the financial and operational management of
high growth organisations.

Prigr to joining LCT, Mr Justice was a Director and CEO {and

" before this was COO and CFO) of a major Seuth Pacific IT

company, which was headquartered in New Zealand, being
listed initially on the ASE and later the TSE in Canada, before
securing a2 main board NASDAQ listing {one of the few New
Zealand based businesses 1o have accomplished this).

During the period of rapid growth, Mr Justice led -the
NASDAQ listing process for the company and assisted in
both the capitat raising program in Canada and the United
States, as well as the raising of debt funding in Australasia.

Ms Paris Brooke

General Manager

Ms Brooke is a highty qualified biotechnology executive with
post graduate qualifications in science communication and
experience in business positioning, strategic advice and
stakeholder management.

Previous to this appointment, Ms Brooke held the position of
Policy and Communication Manager at AusBiotech -
Australia’s Biotechnology Industry Organisation, where she
drove federal industry advocacy programs.

Ms Brooke has also been instrurnental in the biotechnology
sector through her management of businesses including
SDA 8iotech, a life sciences communications group, and
BioNetwork, the first national magazine in Australia
dedicated to biotechnology. She has previously worked for
ABC Radio and In an agri-business start-up.



B Scientific Advisory Committee

Dr John Court MB, BS, FRACP
Chairman of Panel

Dr Court has a private consultant practice in paediatric and
adolescent medicine in Melbourne, Australia. He is also a
consultant at the Royal Children’s Hospital Melbourne.

He has held consultant and teaching positions at the
University of London and as a paediatric endocrinologist at
London's Middlesex Hospital. He has been Director of
Diabetes Services, Director of the Department of Adolescent
Medicine and Senior Physician at the Royal Children’s
Hospital Melbourne.

Professor Robert Seamark BAgSc, PhD

Professor Seamark is a leading figure in Australian biotech-
nology. He consults to biotechnology companies with a
focus on the commerdalisation of medical, veterinary and
environmental technologies. He is author of more than 200
scientific papers and seven patents and spent most of his
career as Senior Lecturer/Reader in Endocrinology at the
Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology at the University
of Adelaide, Australia.

He established the Cooperative Research Centre for the
Biological Control of Pest Animals.in 2001 Professor Seamark
became Director and Chair of the Advisory Board of the
Flinders Medical Research Institute in Adelaide.

Dr Jennifer Couper MBChB, FRACP

Dr Couper is director of Diabetes and Endocrinolagy at the
Women's and Children’s Hospital South Australia, and
Associate Professor of Paediatrics at the University of
Adelaide, Australia.

Professor Robert Elliott MBBS, MD, FRACP

Professor Elliott is medical director and co-founder of LCT.

Mr Alfred V. Vasconcellos Bs Esc, MD, MEM

MrVasconcellos is President and CEOQ of LCT BioPharma.

. rechno!ogy in ‘the rnarket

orshncaurt

What do you think is the greatesr cha"enge facmg
diabétés research? ST e

The greatest challenge today is' 'to-find a method of -
treatment that is safe, does not; cause ‘harm and
effectwely mimics the normal physlologlcal release
of insulin. Ultimately of course, research must pursue
two major goals: to prevent diabetes, and for those
who have the disease, to cureit,

What in your opinion is the kéy featire of

" ICT’s technology?

There are: several ad\rantages, and éach have a wide -
appllcatton in the treatment of senous diseases. The
frst is'the’ abrllty to dehver a mtssmg substance 10

-the patient m the same way, in  the same place andin

the approprlate amount ‘that occurs’' in ‘normal
health. The second is to do this without the need for*
drugs that prevent rejectlon, which themselves have'
powerful side effects, .The third is to deliver products
that -are- safe and effectnre for a wide range of
dnseases The drseases are aII enormously expensive
1o treat on.a long term basts by current methods of
treatment which are relatwely |neffect|ve -

| predict- that demonstratlng ‘that the technoiogy is
effective and safe i in clinical trlals wr]l lead to wide-
spread interest in the cllmcal community and thls
wilf attract substantla[ market interest.

Why drd you accepta posrtron on LCT s’
Scierttific Panef ?

My’ professtonal career has‘oeen IargEIy directed to
the care of chrenic and d:sabhng disorders that start.
in childhood, such as diabetes. | have been attracted
by the mnovatnve approach of the research team at
LCT, their sound scientific basisand careful investigative
methodology. It is an honour to be providing, with
my colleagues on the panel, an independent view on
LCT's research initiatives and development procedures.

‘ Asa producf how do you predrct !he uptake of such a
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‘B Scientific Publications

! Scientific papers published during the

financial year.

Borlongan CV, Skinner SJM. Geaney M, Vasconcellos AV, Elfiott

_R8,.Emerich DF. CNS grafts of rat choroid :plexus protect
aggling.t cerebral ischemia in adult rats. Neuroreport Vol 15

Noi9, July 2004.

Bo{iongan CV, Skinner SJM, Geaney M, Vasconceflos AV, Elliott
RB,Emerich DF. Neuroprotection by encapsulated choroid

plexus in a rodent model of Huntington's disease.

NeuroReport Vol 16 No 16.15 Novemnber 2004, 2521-2525.

Eu#;-ungan CV, Skinner 5J, Geaney M, Elliott RB, Vasconcellos

A\f,éEmerich DF. Intracerebral transplants of choroid plexus
pravide_structural and functional neuroprotection in a

rodent made! of stroke. Stroke Sept 2004, 35(9): 2206-10.

qu:‘our'JM. Gores P Hemendinger R, Emerich DF, Halberstadt
e frans'genic Sertoli cells as vehicle for gene therapy. Cell

Tra;nsplémation 13:1-6, 2004.

L)F,‘lKorbutt ‘GS; Rajotte RV. Genetically engineered Sertoli

cells mc ub|e to survive allogeneic transplantation. Gene
..Therapy-u 694-700 2004.

i i

Elliott R;B Escobar L, Calafiore R, Basta G, Garkavenko 0,

1
Vasconcellos A Bambra C. Transplantation of micro and

I
macro enmpsulated piglet islets into mice and monkeys.

T'ansplantatilon Proceedings, Jan 2005, 37(1): 466-46%, 2005.
1 |

Efliott RB Escobar L ‘Garkavenko O, Bambra C. Safety and

Eﬂ' cacy of Encapsulaled Islet Xenotransplantation. Congress
“1-of~ the" frransplantatmn Society, 5 - 10 Septemberizom

vlc'uuu,nUS!‘ﬂa (1laoster) Transplant Proc Jan-Feb 2005, 3701):
-477-80... Ra e 1
L :

Emerich OF gDose -Dependent Neurochemical and

- 'Functlcnal Protecttoin Afforded by Encapsulated CNTF-

°-oducuEng Cells—Cell Transplantanon Vol 13 p 839-844, 2004.

! i

- Ernench DF Letter |t0 the

Editor. Drugs Today {Barc.)

40}211 2004

. . i
Emench DF: Nanomedncme—ptospecuve therapeutic and

- Therapy 5.

dlagnosnc Pppllcan?ns Exper( Opinion in Biclogical
I -

52005 Pl

aﬂ-u.,-

B Emiench DF. iSertoh c¢|| grafts for Huntington's disease. An

Opinlon Neuromxncuty RTesearch Neurotoxicity Research

| .
4 l A
H

5517 2004 :

Fmench DF. Jhe-convergencel.of cell transplantation and
i nanotechnology CeIIiTran}splantatmn 13:477-479,2004.

| Emerlch DF. Toward cell replacement therapy. Experimental
Neurology 187:537, 2004 Pt

he ey
' :
P . f . 1

Dufour.UM Hemedmger R. Halberstadt CR, Gores P, Emerich’

Emench DF, Borlongan CV. Huntington's disease: pre-clinical
models 10 therapy using genetically-modified immunoiso-
lated cells and lentiviral vectors. Gene Therapy and

Molecular Biology 8:45-59, 2004.

Emerich .DF, skinner $J, Borlongan CV, Vasconcellos AV,
Thanos CG.The choroid plexus in the rise, fall, and repair of
the brain, BioEssays 27:262-274, 2005.

Emerich Df, Thanos €G. Immunoisolated Cells. The
Encyclopedia of Medical Genomics and Proteomics. Marcel
Dekker, Inc. New York 2004,

‘Emetich DF, Vasconcellos AV, Ellictt RB, Skinner 51, Borlongan

CV. The choroid plexus: function, pathology and therapeutic
potential of its transplantation. Expert Opin Biol Ther. 2004
Aug;4(8x1191-1201,

Emerich DF, Winn SR. Neuroprotective effects of encapsulated
CNTF producing cells in a rodent model of Huntington's -
disease are dependant on the proximity of the implant to
the lesioned striatumn. Cell Transplantation 13:253-259, 2004,

Garkavenko Q. Swine hepatitis E in New Zealand.
Surveillance Magazine, 2004, 31 (3). ‘
Garkavenko O, Croxson MC, Irgang M, Kartas A, Denner ),
Elliott RB. Monitoring of potentially xenotic viruses in pig -
islet .xenotransplantation. Journal of Clinical Microbiology.
V42 (11, p 5353-5356, Novernber 2004.

Garkavenko 0, Elliott RB, Croxson MC. Identification of pig
circovirus type 2 in New Zealand pigs. Transplantation
Proceedings, Jan-Feb 2005, 37{1). 506-9.

Garkavenko O, Emerich DF, Muzina M, Muzina Z,Vasconcelios
AV, Ferguson AB, Cooper 1J, Eltiott RB. Successful xenotrans-
plantation of neonatal liver cells.
Proceedings, Jan-Feb 2005; 37(1):477-80.

Transplantation

Garkavenko O, Muzina M, Nathu D, Emerich D, Thanos C,
Elliott R Xenotransplantation of Pig Liver Cells.immunology
& Cell Biology, Vol 83(4)August 2005 (Presented at
Transplantation Soc of Aust & NZ May 2005)

Gongora J, Fleming P, Spencer PB, Mason R, Garkavenko O
Meyer JN, Droegemueller C, Lee JH, Moran €. Phylogenetic
relationships of Australian and New Zealand feral pigs
assessed by mitochondrial control region sequence and
nuclear GPIP genotype. Mol Phylogenet Evol. 2004 Nov;
33(2):339-48.

Halberstadt C, Emerich DF, Gores P. Use of Sertoli cell
transplants to provide local immunopratection for tissue
grafts. Expert Opinion in Biological Therapy 4:813-825, 2004.




1saac JR, Skinner S, Elliott RB, Salto-Tellez M, Garkavenko O,
Khoo A, Lee KO, Calne R, Wang DZ. Transplantation of
Neonatal Porcine lslets and Sertoli Cells into nonimmuno-
‘§-t‘1ppressed nonhuman Primates. Trans Proceed 2005
Jan/Feb; 37(1):487-80.

Newman M8, Davis €D, Borlongan CV, Emerich DF, Sanberg
PR. Transplantation of human umbilical cord blood cells in
the repair of CNS diseases. Expert Opinion in Biological
Therapy 4:121-130, 2004

Newman MB, Emerich DF, Borlongan CV, Sanberg CD,
Sanberg PR. Use of human umbsilical cord blood (HUCB} cells
to repair the damaged brain. Current Neurovascular
Research 1:269-281, 2004,

Salzberg-Benhouse HC, Bartus RT, Fu K, Emerich DF.
Pulmonary delivery of L-dopa produces rapid alleviation of
behavioral and neurochemicat deficits in a rodent model of
Parkinson’s disease. Journmal of Pharmacology and
Experimental Therapeutics 13:253-259, 2004,

Skinner SJ, Borlongan VC, Emerich DF, Geaney M,
Vasconcellos AV, Elliott RB. Encapsulated Choroid Plexus allo
and xeno transplants for the treatment of central nervous
system diseases. Immunology & Cell Biology.Vol 83(4)August
2005 (Presented at Transplantation Soc of Aust & NZ May 2005).

Skinner SJ, Emerich DF, Elliott RB, Geaney M, Vasconcellos AV,
Borlongan CV. Encapsulated choroid plexus cell transplants
for the treatment of central nervous system diseases.
Experimental Biclogy XXXV Int'l Congress of Physiological
Sciences Vol 19, Number S April 2005 (S5an Diego Congress).

Thanos CG, Bell Wl, O'Rourke P, Kauper K, Sherman 5, Lim A,
Stabila P Tap W. Sustained Secretion of CNTF to the Vitreous
using the ECT-Based NT-50%1 Intraccular Device for the
Treatment of Retinitis Pigmentosa. Tissue Engineering 2004;
10(11-12): 1617-1622.

Thanos C, Yip K-P, Mathiowitz, E. Intestinal Uptake of Polymer
Microspheres in the Rabbit Studied with Confocal
Microscopy. Journal of Bioactive and Compatible Polymers
2004; 19: 247-266.

Wang DZ, Skinner 5, Elliott R, Escobar L, Salto-Tellez M,
Garkavenko O, Khoo A, Lee KO, Calne R, Isaac JR
Xenotransplantation of neonatal porcine islets and Sertoli
cells into nonimmunosuppressed streptozotocin-induced
diabetic rats. Transplant Proc. Jan-Feb 2005 37 (1} 470-1,

Winn SR, Emerich DF, Managing chronic pain with
encapsulated cell implants releasing catecholamines and
endogenous opioids. Frontiers in BioSdence 10:367-378, 2005,

B Scientific Presentations

Scientific presentation proceedings
during the financial year.

Elliott, RB., Escabar, L, Garkavenko, 0., and Bambra, C.,
Safety and efficacy of encapsulated islet xenotrans-
plantation, International Congress of the
Transplantation Society 2004, Vienna.

Elliott, RB., Escobar, L., Tan, PL., Vasconcellos, AV,
Emerich, DF., and Thanos, CG, Long term survival of
alginate encapsulated piglet islets in a patient with
type 1 diabetes, World Congress of the International
Pancreas & Islet Transplant Association 2005, Geneva,

Elliott, RB., Tan, PL, Escobar, L., Vasconcellos, AV,
Emerich, DF, Calafiore, R, and Bambra, C,
Intraperitoneal alginate encapsulated neonatal
porcine islets ameliorate diabetes long term in a
primate model, American Diabetes Association 65th
Sclentific Sessions, San Diego, CA.

Garkavenko, O, Emerich, DF, Muzina, M., Muzina, Z.,
Vasconcellos, AV, Ferguson, AB. Cooper, 1), and
Elliott, RB,, Xenotransplantation of neonatal porcine
liver cells, international Congress of the
Transplantation Society 2004, Vienna.

Kauper, K, Shesrman, 5., Stabila, P, Litvak, D, Lee, A,
Heatherton, P, Lydan, 1, Thanos, CG., and Tao, W,
Intravitreal Delivery of Therapeutic Melecules Using
Encapsulated Cell Technology in Rabbit and Rodent
Animal Maodels, Ocular Angiogenesis 2005,
Cambridge, MA.

Skinner, SJM., Borlongan, CV., Emerich, DF, Geaney, M.,
Vasconcellos, AV, and Elliott, RB,, Encapsulated
choroids plexus allo- and xeno-transplants for the
treatment of central nervous system diseases,
Transplantation Society of Australia and New
Zealand, Canberra.

Thanos, CG., Skinner, SJ,, Borlongan, CV,, and Emerich,
DF Intracerebral transplants of encapsulated choroid
plexus are neuroprotective in animal models of
stroke and Huntington's disease. Meeting of the Cell
Transplant Society 2004, Boston, MA.
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W Patents

LCT holds patents and patent applications in 8 main patent families that cover the use and treatment of diabetes,
use and treatment of CNS disorders and porcine cells in xenotransplantation. Patents are granted in the US and NZ. .

" The patent families are as follows: *
= - Porcine islets in the treatment of diabetes

- Encapsulated islets and their traniplamation
-« Sertoli and islet aggregates

« Co-culture of cells for transplantation

- Hepatocytes and liver associated cells
™ Choroid plexus ' '

» Lung administration

= Breeding of high-health status pigs

17 N
The following tablz outlines new patent applications filed.

|
Culture’and Use of Cells that Secrete

_cretc%ry Factors .
(L‘fwer Transplantation) PCT/1B2005/001324 International PCT 30/3/05 To be assigned to FacB8Cell Pty Limited
Hgfnotra;nspiam far “11/036,202
CNS Therapy {CIP of USSN 09/959,560)" USA 14/1/05 NeurotrophinCell Pty Ltd
Ntrvel.i\:lethods of
Treatment and “10/494,820
D iiver)'f Modes NPE of PCT/NZ02/00235 USA 27/12/04 DiaBCell Pty Limited
Novel Methads of
Tréatment ar;‘d‘ “200402624-1
Delivery Mm%es NPE of CTNZ02/00235° Singapore 515/04 DiaBCell Pty Limited
NETeTNéEihT):d?df
Treatment ar!)d- . “02802751.4
De fivenlf Modes NPE of PCT/NZ02/00235  Europe 2/6/04 DiaBCell Pry Limited

i ° g
Swine.Population: To be assigned to Living Cell
and UsesThereof | 539491 NZ 15/4/05 Technologles Limited

1
CI IU=|.4 p[eﬂls e At
préparation and

usks thereaf . 536009 NZ 18/10/04 NeurotrophinCell Pry Ltd
I T

Call implantation.to.prévent and/or

treat autoimmune i ] o To be assigned to

difease i 540597 NZ B/E05 NeurctrophinCell Py L1d

Preparation and 28930/01

X notra'nspl?mat ;NPE of Assigned to

of pardne islet PCT/NZ01/00006 Australia 30/6/05 DiaBCell Pty Ltd
_ P_leparélion,:and_ . '
anotr%nspianlat H ‘ Assigned to
p‘ poto;ne islet 490606 Singapore 30/6/05 DiaBCell Pty Ltd
Pﬁepara"li&nﬂaﬁd o i ]
x nutra:nsplgnta( 1525272 (Divisional of Assigned to
of pordne.islet .. -.5076‘161507963) NZ 7/4/05 [¥iaBCell Pty Ltd
pr]ppa:%tion.land
xe.nutrinspléntal. RN S Assigned to
ofpordneislet | i hoorinn Australia 10/6/05 DiaBCell Pty Ltd
Methods of [ b
i H H
A Treatmentafid — T 7T Assigned to Living
Delivery Motes——————515310—- - NZ 91204 Cell Products Pty Lid
- loog T -

!
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events/conferences

_2004
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B Communications P

2005 T
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Conferences e
LCI' has a strong fnvolvement in mtematlonal . [

xX Internatlonal Congress of the Transplantatlon Socnety
September 5 10 ) :
Vlenna. Austﬂa . T

-

NZ Bio Coﬁference .
March !4-15
Auckland New Zea!and

XXXV lnternational Congr_ess of -
Physwloglcal Scierices = - -
March 31 - April § e

-
.

“ San Diego, | UsA’

E Umversnty of Perugia W intemauonal Symposlum T

Innovative, Insulm Delwery Dewces

April 28 - May 1
A55|5|, |taly

. Intemat;onal Pancreas & Islet Transplam Assocuatlon
 May4-7"

Raising LCT’s Profile

LCT has increased its engagement with the local and
international biotech communities reflecting the company's
progress in advancing its product portfolio towards phase |
clinical trials.

At all times, LCT is mindful of the ASX/AusBiotech Code of
Best Practice for Reporting by Biotechnology, Medical Device
and other Life Sciences companies which was developed to
enhance communication and understanding between
eompanies and the investment community. '

The LCT corporate head-quarters were established in
Melbourne to enable the company to be closer to its
shareholders and the investment community in Australia.

' Bloﬂeiatronshlps Ameru:an Austrahan
' Assncratmn Meeting’ T

v

Geneva, Swrtzerland e

Transplantatlon Soaety of Australia’

“and New Zeafand

Mayﬂ 13

;'Canberra Austra]ia Tl

NZ Dlabetes Youth AGM

" May 7-8
. Napser New Zealand

\

-.Amerlcan Drabetes Assoclatlon

65th Sclentlf‘ ic Sessions_
June 10-14 S
San Dlego.USA '

v

June 17
LCT's in-house commumcatlon team send.s eorporate and I Boston,USA ,
company information after officially notifying the stock ' o - -
exchange in accordance with ASX listing rules to institutional, k B'° 2005 T
“June19 22 .- B

commercial and private investors, local and overseas media
and other interested parties.

The company’s participation in the major global industry
conferences such as BioPartnerships and BIO2005 has
contributed to the increased international recognition of the
company. Ongoing media coverage, investor road shows
and presentations of scientific papers have created a better
understanding of the company’s technology and business
model. LCT has also actively engaged with community
groups involved in the areas of focus providing
educational materials.

v

We expect institutional investors and biotech analysts to
become increasingly interested in providing investrment
commentary about LCT, further strengthening the
company’s profile in Australia and worldwide.

Phlladelphla USA

-Annual Queenstown Molecular Blology Meetlng

August. 30 September 2

Queenstown New.Zealand

Ve

Intemauonal Soclety for Paediatric
‘and Adolescent Diabetes

August 31 September 3

Krakow, Puland

,‘ DNA Devnces & Dealers 2005

September 7-8

Sydney, Austraha

Blh !nternatlonal Xenotransplantation Congress

' September 101 4 -
’ Gothenburg. Sweden

29




B Directors’ Report

Your directors submit their report for the year ending 30
June 2005.

DIRECTORS

The names and details of the company's directors in office
during the financial year and until the date of this report are
as follows. Direciors were in office for the entire period
unless otherwise stated.

Names, qualifications, experience and special responsibilities

Michael Yates BA{Hons) Leeds University UK
(Executive Chairman)
Age:55

Mick is a globally experienced CEQ based in the United
Kingdom. He has almost 30 years of experience with multi-
nationals in Europe, the USA and the Asia-Pacific. Mick was
Procter and Gamble's Regional Vice President based in Hong
Kong and Japan. He then joined Johnson & Johnson as
Company Group Chairman Asia-Pacific Consumer based in
Singapore.

In 2001, Mick returned to the UK to set up his own leadership
and strategy advisory company, Leader Values Ltd,

Mick has been Director and Chairman of LCT since 15 April
2004, He was appointed Executive Chairman on 30
November 2004 reflecting the additional time commitment
and very active role Mick has with the company.

Simon O'Loughlin BA Acc, (Non-Executive Director)
Age :48

Simon O'Loughlin is a legal practitioner with over 25 years
experience as a corporate and commercial solicitor. He has
had extensive involvement in the ¢orporate world, especially
in relation to the formation, structuring and listing of small
to medium sized companies.

Simon is a director of Hindmarsh Resources Ltd, Petratherm
Lid and WCP Diversified Investments Ltd. In recent times he
has been a director of Gowit Ltd {(now Agincourt Resources
Ltd). Simon is a past President of the Save the Children Fund
(SA Division) and a past Chairman of Taxation Institute of
Australia (SA Division). Simon's knowledge of Australian
Corporate Law and ASX listing rules is critical for his role on
the board and its committees.

Robert Elliott MBES, MD, FRACP (Medical Director)
Age: 71

Professor Elliott trained as a Paediatrician at Adelaide
University, He moved to New Zealand in 1970 10 become the
Foundation Professor, Department of Paediatrics at the
University of Auckland. Professor Elliott co-founded LCT.

He is an Emeritus Professor of Child Health research,
Professor of Paediatrics and a world teader in diabetes and
autoimmune related research. Professor Elliott is on the
board of the New Zealand Child Health Foundation and the

F“

[.....]

Wings Trust {a NZ trust for the treatment of alcohol and
substance abuse). He is also patron of the N2 Cystic
Fibrosis Foundation. In 1999 he was awarded a CNZM (a
Companion of the New Zealand order of merit) for services
to the community.

David Collinson
{Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer}
Age :57

David Collinson is a New Zealand company director who,
with Professor Robert Elliott, founded LCT's research and
development activity in 1987 when his son became diabetic
at the age of two.

David has contributed a substantial amount of private capi-
tal to the establishment of LCT and has been instrumental in
raising further funding for the development and growth of
LCT. He has been the driving force behind the international
development of the company.

David is a director of J Collinson Ltd and is also a director of
several new biotechnology companies in the food and
health sector. He also founded the New Zealand textile
importers institute.

Roger Coats (Non Executive Director)
Age:43

Roger. Coats was educated in Adelaide and previously held
senior positions in Europe and Sydney with some of the
world's largest financial organisations, including Merrill
Lynch, Hambros, ABN AMRO and BNP Paribas. Rager runs the
consultancy firm COATS DAY specialising in corporate
finance, capital markets origination and risk management
assisting companies define strategic corporate direction and
risk management.

Roger joined LCT in 2002 specifically to provide the
company with expertise in finance and administration,
capital raising and capital structuring.

Alfred Vasconcellos Bs-ESc, MEM, HMD

{Executive Director, President & CEQ LCT BioPharma Inc)
Appointed Director 28 October 2004

Age: 49

Al Vasconcellos serves as President and CEQ of LCT
BioPharma, Prior to LCT, Al was President and CEQ of Sertoli
Technologies Inc., a Sertoli cell therapy company and Chief
Operating Officer of the ETEX Corporation, a fully integrated
company and a leader in the field of cell and hard tissue
regeneration with worldwide sales in the ENT, orthopedic
and dental markets.

He was a co-founder of CytoTherapeutics Inc., established
the Strategic Market Development Department for Pfizer in
New York City and headed R&D for the anesthesia and
surgical care division of Kendall.

Al is a medically trained engineer with a business degree
fram Morthwestern University,

3t



" Company Secretary

-—t. .o -~ Nick Geddes, FCA,FCIS

—“_' Nick is the principal of Australian Company Secretaries, a
~ company secretarial practice, which he formed in 1993.He is
wmpm—- ——a'member of the National Council of Chartered Secretaries
——4em . - -Australia and Chairman of the NSW Branch of that Institute,
|| with previous experience as a Chartered Accountant and

} o Cohpany Secretary, including investiment banking and

i " development and venture capital in Europe, Africa, the
~ 17 Middle East and Asia.

O A | . _

'85sic earnings per share (7.3)
" DIVIDENDS
. I
- No dividends were paid or declared since the start of the
t ‘ ﬁnaneia!__ye?r. No recommendation for the payment of a
! - dividend has been made.

JROROTR: SR

*

- s F
i 1 | i
1 .
e "“"Corporate'structure
- 3 O . a—

______L ' _:__The companles within the economic entity make up a

0 vertlcally mteg,rated cell therapy business operating
globally through offices in Australia {Country of incorporation),
w-*--r--"-New-Zealand and-the United States. The economic entity is
Y pub[u: listed} company incorporated and domiciled
L in Austrahal ;

t

: Thg econom.ic enrliry n?w has three distinct operating divisions:

~ _ ». N ' The researc? anc! producnon division is located in Auckland,
D New Zealand. This u Unit is headed by Dr Paul Tan who has
“"T‘"‘“—"‘extenswe international-experience in operating research

P e facuhtles,-.cionductmg clinical studies and managing
it mtellectual pmpeny ponfollos

[ —

. The product deveicpment division is located in Rhode

o ... Island, USA}headed by-Alfred Vasconcellos whose experi-
. ence with Cyto“ﬁ\erapeuncs Pfizer and Sertoli is well suited
to leadmg the company lhrough the regulatory pathways of
TtiE FDA a%d egotlatlons with major pharmaceutical
'+ - ¢ companies; The design’ of the last stages of pre-clinical trials
e :scr:tlcal:o?amlngacceptancefromtheregulatoryauthontles

Fr—

Corporate Ea1’“fa|rs arle manag’ed between Auckland (for
« = financial- control and reportmg under the management of
. . .Rid‘lard Justice, an expenenced CFO with public company
N expeﬂence for compamesfllsted in New Zealand, Canada and
" the United States) Sydney (or company secretarial matters
. LT
and carporaite governance (wulh Nick Geddes as Company
-~ Secretary) and the- Melboa.frne based office (managed by LCT
. Australia’s General Manager Paris Brooke) focusing on
|nvestor relatlons i

32 - ok AN,
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Nature of operations and principal activities

The principal activities during the period beginning 1 July
2004 and ending 30 June 2005 of the companies within the
economic entity were:

- the development of cell based medical treatments

There have been no significant changes in the nature of
those activities during the financial year.

Employees

The economic entity employed 35 employees as at 30 June
2005.(2004; 28 employees).

Review and Results of Operations
Group Overview

The business of Living Cell Technologies Ltd (LCT) began in

<1987 in a quest for a treatment for Type 1 diabetes that

would not onfy minimize or replace daily injections of insulin
but would also avoid the long term complications created by
the disease.

The past 1B years have seen substantial progress in the
research and development program and pre-clinical testing
conducted by companies associated with the Directors.

it is the view of the Board of Directors that the company is
now poised to make significant progress towards the
commercialisation of the company's products, resuling
from the company's focus on the implantation of healthy
living cells to replace, repair or regenerate diseased or
damaged organs, which does not require the use of toxic
drugs to prevent rejection.

The company portfolio focuses on treatments for
Huntington's disease/stroke/CNS trauma, type | diabetes
and haemophilia,

LCT's competitive advantage includes the company's
breadth of knowledge in cell therapy, access to high health
status pigs and expertise in the processing of cells to GMP
manufacturing standards.

During the finandial year ended 30 June, 2005 LCT completed

" and announced results from the first studies in non-human

primates for the two lead products; DiabeCel! for diabetes
and NeurotrophinCell for Huntington's disease.

The company has expended its funds primarily in the
preclinical development of its lead products.



Operating Results for the Year

Summarised operating results are as follows:

2009 . o ) O E s

Business segment

Research and development and product development 225,855 (6,097.309)

Consolidated entity revenue and profit/{loss)

from ordinary activities before income tax expense 225,855 (6.097,309)

Geographic segments

New Zealand 256717,409 160,686

USA 1,647,319 (45,204)

Australia 207457 (15,434,672)
4,532,185 {15,319,190}

Consolidated entity adjustments (4,306,330 9,221,881

Consolidated entity sales and operating profit 215,855 (6,097,309)

Shareholder Returns

Summarised operating results are as follows:

Basic earning/(loss) per share (cents)

(7.3}

(51.0) - -

Review of Financial Condition

Capital Structure

The net assets of the economic entity have increased by
$4,460,968 from (51,325,415) as at 30 June 2004 to
$3,135,554 as at 30 June 2005. This increase has largely
resulted from share issues raising $10,095,916.

Cash from Operations

Net cash flows from operating activities moved from
($1,272,003)in the previous period to (56,094,932} in the
current period. The increase in cash expenditure from
operating activities was largely due 10 the planned increase
in expenditure on research and development activities and
associated staff costs.

Liquidity and Funding

The group has $2,648,491 cash in the bank as at 30 June
2005,which based on expected and budgeted expenditure
would allow the group to fund current operations for
approximately five months. There is an on-going activity to
secure additional investment funding which will be raised at
appropriate times to support the future growth and devel-
opment of the operation. Since balance date a further
$2,300,000 cash has been raised (sufficient to fund group
operations for approximately a further four monthshwith
additional funding arrangements being negotiated with
local and international investors, to provide the cash
required for general working capital, as the company
moves towards clinical trials of the company’s products.
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Significant Changes in the State of Affairs

The following srgmf‘ icant changes in the state of affairs

T--i

of the parent entity occurred during the financial year:

On 1 September, 2004 the company obtained listing on the

) __I-}ugtgallan Stock Exchange Ltd (ASX).

SR QS N

As-at1 September,2004 the company raised the following
capital through a rights and general issue and private
placement:

PP

- Ri{jhtsT and general issue -25,716,581 ordinary shares were

issued fbr $5,143,316.

Ty
M ana:e placement -1,500,000 ordinary shares were issued

|
|

for 5300 000

—— -

!
: As-at-3-November 2004 the company placed 10,912,866

L

h ‘
1_shares ifsued for $4,365,146.

t
Dﬁﬁ#th‘é’i;‘éér convertible notes worth $1,045,848 were

’convertied‘le;r 5,175,700 shares and 196,750 shares were

isséed- or-options exercised,raising $42,585.
)

On|30 June| 2005 the company issued 625,000 shares to

e the;’company.

-4
Pa:}cell New Zealand Limited to purchase the assets of

§

S
Pat;ents; filed and granted during the financial year

it
Duiing_the past year, 8 new patents were filed and in the

same period four pa patents were grantedtwo each in New
ZE&}I% andl Aus}rallal.

] ! .
';lgnifica'nt.Everints after the Balance Date
!

As at 9 August, 2005 the company had raised $2,300,000

through~a {placement " of ordinary shares to existing

]
Bt "sha;rehofdersg-at'$0:22§per share,

T‘né pbéemént e presents 10,454,545 shares.

R o e

- —— e}

- g

{
|

e m——

leely Deve[opments and Expected Results

hTHE‘e”cmTér"ﬁllE'é"niit}"e“iﬁé.i:‘fs to maintain the present status
“and‘level'o operatiolns‘lﬁ'the research, development and

commercuahsatlon ofits 3 product lines.The Directors expect
that researcll'l .and. delvelopment lasses will continue to be
made for th yeailr ended. 30 June 2006.

{

S --¢~Enwronmental Regulatlon and
o Performance s
——————i . ._v_.:_-m - - ..__L._... R

. The company's’ operatlons are not regulated by any
" significan enwranmental régulation under a law of the
Commoinwealth orof: a State or Territory.

]
- A

Share Options

As at 30 June, 2005 the company had issued 15,964,400
options over ordinary shares, {2004; _13.536.150) All options
have no vesting period. Of the total, 12,466,150 have an
exercise price of $0.21 and expire on 30 June, 2010 {2004 ;
12,536,150), 1,873,250 have an exercise price of $0.22 and
expire 30 June, 2008 (2004: 1,000,000 and 1,625,000 have an
exercise price of $0.30 and expire on 30 June 2010
(2004 :nil). ‘

Sharesissued as a result of the exercise of options
During the financial year the company issued 196,750 shares

as a result of options being exercised, 70,000 at 50.21 per
share and 126,750 at $0.22 per share. (2004 : nil)

Indemnification and insurance of
Directors and Officers

- During of since the end of the financial year the company

has not given an indemnity or entered into an agreement to
indemnify any of the officers or auditors of the company.

Remuneration Report
Remuneration policy

The performance of the company depends upon the quality
of its directors and executives.To prosper,the company must
attract, motivate and retain highly skilled directors and
executives, To this endthe company provides competitive
rewards to attract high calibre executives.

All executives receive a base salary (which is based on factors
such as length of service and experience)and entited to
partlclpale m the option arrangemenis.

Australian based directors and executives receive a
superannuation guarantee contribution required by the
government, which is currently 9% and do not receive any
other retirement benefits.

All remuneration paid to directors and executives is valued
at the cost to the company and expensed.Options are valued
using the Black-Scholes methodolagy.

The board policy is to remunerate non-executive directors at
market rates for comparable companies for time,
commitment and responsibilities. To align directors' interests
with shareholder interests the directors are encouraged to
hold shares in the company and are able to participate in the
employee option plan.

Details of the nature and amount of each element of the
emolument of each director of the company and the specified
executive officers of the company are detailed on the right:




Remuneration of Directors and Specified Executives

Primary Post Employment Equity Other Total

- —— — —— - —

b e 'Salary li;?}’ p etirernent ROTtioN S S y
> e 1 ELA”"‘@;‘*; :4‘“ AL T Y ¢
et e po L
Directors
Michael Yates )
2005 125,036 - - - - 104,003 - 229,039
2004 12,493 - - - - - - 12,493
Simon O'Loughlin
2005 40,947 - - 4,215 - 34,668 - 79,830
2004 6,041 - - - - - - 6,041
Robert Elliott
2005 ] 163, 891 - - - - - - 163,891
2004 ' 77,602 - - - - - - 77,602
David Collinson
2005 171,39 - - - - - - 171,391
2004 77,602 - - - - - - 77,602
Roger Coats
2005 205, 005 - - 10,652 - - - 215,657
2004 77,917 - - 7,013 - - - 84,930
Alfred Vasconcellos
2005 316,888 - - - - 121,337 - 438,225
Total Remuneration: Directors
2005 1,023,158 - - 14,867 . 260,008 - 1,298,033
2004 251,655 - - 7,013 - - - 258,668
Specified Executives
Richard Justice
2005 100,737 - - - - - - 100, 737
Paul Tan
2005 212,778 - - - - 69,336 - 282,114
2004 43,682 - - - - - - 43,682
Paris Brooke
2005 24,979 - - - - - - 24,979
Total Remuneration: Specified Executives
2005 338,494 - - - - 69,336 - 407,830
2004* 156,965 156, 965

* Group totals in respect of the financial year ended 2004 do not necessarily equal the sums of amounts disclosed for 2004 for
individuals specified in 2005, as different individuals were specified in 2004.

35




®
® ;
Michael Yates was Chairman and Director up to 30 November 2004 when he was appointed as Executive Chairman.
~=TRoger Coats was Chief Operating Officer (COO)and Director up to 28 February 2005 when he resigned as COQ,remaining as a
nor- executive director.
@

Alfer Vasconcellos was President and CEQ of LCT BioPharma up to 28 October 2004,when he was also appointed as a director.

- Rictilard Justice was appointed CFO on 10 November 2004.

PE?E'BEoke was appointed as General Manager LCT Australia Pty Ltd on 1 April 2005.

Remuneratlon options: Granted and vested during the period

® Opttons are issued to director and executives as part of their remuneration.The options are not issued based on performance
epe e cntena but are issued to the majority of directors and executives of the company to Increase goal congruence between

. exelcutl\(es directors and shareholders,

’ rTthole:'wing remuneration options granted to directors or specified executives during the period from 1 July 2004 to 30 June 2005,

S
i | ; i

d T
i Sl o -Tenns&lr Conditions for Each Grant
]
L Qsiucl e erdse
.. GEUERER
® SSANE .
:peuﬁed‘D;rec‘tors )
} H _ .
Mrr_hael Yates - 450,000 28 Oct 2004 0.36 030 15Nov 2005 15 Nov 2010
Slmon 0'L0!f(;h1t1 I - 150,000 28 Oct 2004 0.36 0.30 15 Nov 2005 15 Nov 2070
Alfred Vasconcellos - 525,000 28 Oct 2004 0.36 0.30 15Nov 2005 15 Nov 2010
-t
P ] Speuf‘ ed E:rccutnves
Paul Tan Lt 300,000 28 Oct 2004 036 030 15 Nov 2005 15 Nov 2010
Total R 1,425,000
i "
b {»e Fromél Juli; 2004, opuong; granied as part of the directors and specified executives remuneration have been valued using a Binomial
o f option pricing madel whrch takes account of factors including the option exercise price,the current level and volatility of the underlying
._Tshare price.the nslk-r’ree ‘interest rate,expected dividends on the underlying share,current market price of the underlying share and the
DS N .W.I,arpeaed life of the option. .i..
. _7__].._,_-..__.‘.._.‘ N SO

SURU IR A S S




Proceedings on behalf of the company

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings
on behalf of the company or intervene in any proceedings to
which the company is a party for the purpose of taking
responsibility an behalf of the company for all or any part of
those proceedings.The company was not a party to any such
proceedings during the year.

Directors’ Meetings

The numbers of meetings of directors held during the
period and the number of meetings attended by each
director were as follows:

f‘f", RPN O |f §ctorsimentings

Number of meetings held: 14

Number of meetings attended:

" Michael Yates 13
Simen O'Loughlin 13
Robert Elliont 2
Bavid Callinson 13
Roger Coats 13
Alired Vasconcellos (eligible to attend 6} 6

Corporate Governance

In recognising the need for the highest standards of
corporate behaviour and accountability, the directors
of Living Cell Technologies Ltd support and have adhered to
the principles of corporate governance.

The company’s corporate governance statement is contained
in the following section of this annual report.

Auditor’s Independence Declaration

The lead auditor's independence declaration for the year
ended 30 lune 2005 has been received and can be found
following the director's report.

Non-Audit Services

There were no non-audit services provided by the entity's
auditor, PKF.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

o
Mg
I

Michael Yates, Chairman
Sydney, 13 September 2005
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i Chartered Accountants
& Business Advisers
L
NSW Partnership
: ABN 83 236 985 726
A Member Firm of PKF International Level 10,1 Margarets Street
Sydney NSW 2000
) ; DX 10173 Sydney Stock Exchange NSW
I Tel:61 2 9251 4100
Fax:61 292409821
i www.pkf com.au
— _____i - Liability is limited by the Accountants Scheme,
® approved under the Prefessienal Standards Act
. . . 1994 (NSW)
Lead auditor’s independence declaration
Under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001
® - To the Directors of Living Cell Technologies Limited
1 dectare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief,in relation to the audit for the year
SN E - ended 30 June 2005, there have been:
i i.no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in rela-
- d—- tion to the audit; and
® ii. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit,
® ] PKF
P Chartered Accountants & Business Advisers
R——— H 1 -
T NSW Partnership
e
| i arthurMilner
S Partner
® o
1.
- - Sydney: 13 September 2005




B Corporate Governance Statement

The company was admitted to the Australian Stock
Exchange {ASX} on 1 September, 2004 and it was proposed
that all of the best practice recommendations of the ASX
Corporate Governance Council would be implemented
during the financial year ended 30 June, 2005.

Implementation of the Corporate Governance Policy is in
progress and the current status is summarised below:

The board of directors of Living Cell Technofogies Ltd is
responsible for the corporate governance of the consolidated
entity. The board guides and monitars the business and
affairs of Living Cell Technologies Ltd on behalf of the share-
holders by whom they are elected and 1o whom they are
accountable.

The format of the Corporate Governance Statement has
changed in comparison to the previous year due to the
introduction of the Australian Stock Exchange Corporate
Governance Council's {the Council's) "Principles of Good
Corporate Governance and Best Practice Recommendations”
(the Recommendations). In accordance with the Council's
recornmendations, the Corporate Governance Statement
must now contain certain specific information and must
disclose the extent 1o which the company has followed the
guidelines during the period. Where a recommendation has
not been followed, that fact must be disclosed, together with
the reasons for the departure. Living Cell Technologies Lid's
Corporate Governance Statement is now structured with
reference to the Corporate Governance Coundil's prindples and
recommendations, which are as follows:

Principle 1.  lay solid foundations for management
and oversight

Principle 2.  Structure the board to add value

Principle 3.  Promote ethical and responsible
decision making

Principle 4.  Safequard integrity in financial reporting

Principle 5.  Make timely and balanced disclosure

Principle 6.  Respect the rights of shareholders

Principle 7. Recognise and manage risk

Principle 8.  Encourage enhanced performance

Principle 9.  Remunerate fairly and responsibly

Prip:iple 10. Recognise the legitimate interests

of stakeholders

Living Cell Technologies Ltd's corporate governance practices
were in place throughout the year ended 30 June 2005 and
were fully compliant with the Council's best practice
recommendations apart from the following recommendations:

Recommendation 2.1 A majority of the board should be
independent directors

Due to the size of the company, and the strategic
relationships, the directors have determined that it is
inappropriate to increase the number of directors to the size
where there can be a majority of independent directors.

However, this decision does not limit the size of the board,
nor precude the appointment of additional independent
directors in the future.

Recommendation 2.2 The chairman should be an
independent director. The chairman, Michael Yates, was an
independent director until his appointment as Executive
Chairman on 30 November, 2004,

Recommendation 2.4 The board should establish a
nomination committee and str'ucture the nomination
committee 5o that it consists of a majority of independent
directors and at least three members.

The board established a nomination committee, but due to
the size of the board it is not possible to meet the
recommendation of having at least three members, the
majority of which are independent.

Recommendation 4.3 The board should establish an audit
committee and structure the audit committee so that it
consists of only non-executive directors, a majority of
independent directors and at least three members.

The board established an audit committee, but due to the
size of the board it is not possible to meet the recommendation
of having at least three members, the majority of which
are independent.

Recommendation 8.1 Disclase the process for performance
evaluation of the board, its committees and individual
directors and key executives. The company has no formal
board / committee / director evaluation process at present.

Recommendation 9.2 The board should establish a
remuneration committee and structure the remuneration
committee so that it consists of a majority of independent
directors and at least three members.

The board established a remuneration committee, but due
to the size of the board it is not possible to meet the
recommendation of having at least three members,
the majority of which are independent.

For further information on corporate governance policies
adopted by Living Cell Technologies Ltd, refer to our website
www.lctglobal.com.

L

e
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' Board Composition

L1
_____ The skills, experience and expertise relevant to the position

, of director held by each director in office at the date of the

T} annual report is included in the Directors' Report on page 31.

—I-Directors of Living Cell Technologies Ltd are considered 10 be

independent when they are independent of management
_ . ..and free from any business or other relationship that could

e

T . -
materially interfere with - or could reasonably be perceived

to lrnatetially interfere with - the exercise of their unfettered

and mdependent judgement,

_In |the .context of director independence, *materiality” is
. considered from both the company and individual director

. pei'spective The determination of materiality requires
H consuderatlon of both quantitative and qualitative elements.

: An |tem is'presumed to be quantitatively immaterial if it is
1

e equal or less than 5% of the appropriate base amount. It is

presumed to be material (unless there is qualitative evidence

e contrary) if it is equal to or greater than 10% of the
) app:oprlatetbase amount. Qualitative factors considered

f mdude whether a relationship is strategically important, the
competltlve Iandscape,the nature of the relationship and the

ro?tracltualfor_other arrangements governing it and other
1 factors which point to the actual ability of the director in

]

i

¥ oo ' - . *

! i question to shape the direction of the company’s loyalty.
|

i

1

| |
i»‘fhe names of the independent directors of the company are:
I

Siman ] Lolughhn

- .__._.-1-_4_

Mu:hael Yates was an independent director of the company

unyl 30 Novgmbgr. 0’04 when appointed Executive Chairman.
T ] .

oo
=ndependent‘directors-have the right to seek independent
—profassional _advice. in the furtherance of their duties as

| .
directors atlthe compan)fs expense. Written approval must

be| obta:ned from the chairman prior to incurring any

i
-+ - et st A
f

; expense on behalf of;ﬁle company

- Secuntles Tradmg]Pollcy

¥ |

- ——The" company‘s l)oll y‘relgarding directors and employees

s tfadtng in-its seclrities is-set by the Board. The policy restricts

et ._dlrectors and employees from acting on material information

I untul it has bf.'en released tothe market and adequate time has
: ' been gwen for this ta be reﬁected in the security's prices.

v —y————— |

Audlt Commnttlee .

1
|
I

[ fa—

S i
: ! An \n Audit Co Commlttee has Il)een formed and is responsible for:
7, ,_., .. _-_qverseem_g and appra|;mg_the_quallty of the external audit
) ' . and the |nterna| céntroi _procedures, especially in the
] fo||owmg areas:

H
T . . . ] T

]
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!

- finandial reporting and practicés:

- business ethics, policies and practices;
- accc;uniing polic_ies; and

- management and internal controls;

- providing, through regular meetings, a forum for

communication between the board, senior financial

management staff involved in internal contro! procedures
and the external auditors; and

- enhancing the credibility and objectivity of financial
reports with other interested parties, including creditors, key
stakeholders and the general public.

The Audit Committee comprises a minimum of one
independent director who will chair the meetings. (Simon
O'Loughlin). The Chief Executive Officer (CEO, the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) and the Company Secretary may be
invited to attend the meetings but are not be members of
the committee, The Audit Committee will meet independently

‘of all employees of the company and with the external

auditors at least once a year.

Remuneration Policy

It is the company's objective to provide maximum

stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality

board and executive team by remunerating directors and
key executives fairfly and appropriately with reference 10

relevant employment market conditions. The expected
outcomes of the remuneration structure are;

-ARet-ention_and motivation of key executives
+ Attraction of quality management to the company

Afull dlscussmn of the company s remunerauon philosophy
and framework and the remuneration received by directors
and executives in the current period, please refer to the
remuneration report, which is contained within the
Director’s Report.

There is no scheme to provide retirement benefits, other
than statutory superannuation, to non-executive directors.



Remuneration Committee

The Board is responsible for determining and reviewing
compensation arrangements for the directors themselves
and the chief executive officer and the executive team.

A Remuneration Committee has been formed to:

+ set policies for senior officers’ remuneration;
- set policies for directors' remuneration;

- make specific recommendations to the board on remuner-
ation of directors and senior officers;

- set the terms and conditions of employment of a Chief
Executive Officer (CEQ);

+ undertake a detailed review of the CEO's performance, at
least annually, including setting, with the CEQ, goals for the
_coming year and reviewing progress in achieving these
goals; and

- approve the recommendations of the CEQO on the
remuneraticn of all line managers.

It is intended that the Remuneration Committee will
comprise two independent directors and that the
Remuneration Committee will not contain any executive
directors. The Remuneration Committee presently comprises
Simon C'Loughlin as an independent director and Michael
Yates, Chairman, who until 30 November 2004 was an
independent director of the company.

Compliance Committee
A Compliance Committee will be formed to be responsible for:

« setting, reviewing and ratifying comorate compliance policies;

- averseeing the implementation of a corporate compliance
system including, but not limited t0:

- liquidity;

- financial and secretarial;

- tax returns;

- licences and permits;

- safety;

- enviranment;

- industrial relations, including employment contracts;

- guality assurance, induding good manufacturing practice;

- trade practices;

- privacy;
- tnsurance;
- risk management; and

- equal opportunity and anti-dis¢simination;

- referring to the board, if necessary, any substantial
matters arising from compliance reviews.

The Compliance Committee will comprise of at least one
independent director. The CEQ will also be a member of the
cornmittee and act as chairman. Additionally, the Company
Secretary will be a member of the committee.

Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee has been formed to:
devise criteria for board membership;

- identify specific candidates with skills for nomination;
provide advice on corporate governance;

- make recommendations to the board for new directors
and membership of corporate governance committees;

assist the chairperson in advising directors about their
performance and possible retirement; and

- monitor management succession plans, including the
CEQ and line management.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the chairman of
the board (Michael Yates) with Simon O'Loughlin a member
of the committee as an independent director. The CEQ is not
a member of the Nomination Committee.

Scientific Committee

The Scientific Committee has been formed and is responsi-
ble for review and repotting to the Board of:

+ Sdcientific developments and improvements;
+ Regulatory matters associated with the science;

- Feasibility of commercialisation and research of existing
and new products; and

- Patents and other intellectual property developments.

The Scientific Committee is chaired by an independent
adviser to the Board. The CEQ is not a member of the
Scientific Committee.

| o

M



7

H Financial Statements

Staternent of Financial Performance 44
Statement of Financial Position 45
Statement of Cash Flows 46
Notes to the Financial Statements 47 - 68
Directors’ Declaration 69
Independent Audit Report 70-71
ASX Additiona! Information 72-73

43




Statement of Financial Performance

[ BERINE CONOMIGENTIT, YRR 1 AN YA
- 2005 2004 2005 2004
B 5 $ $ $
REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 2 225,855 101,472 199,234 23,209
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 {146,556} (53,871) 122) -
D SRR -BOII’OWiI:’!g costs expense 3 (7,643} {23,015) (7,643) (23,015)
Salariesand employee benefits expense {2,943,666) (931,471) {196,662) (59.784)
I 'Transpon costs 112,339) {1,199 - -
Advemsmg (108,514) (78,150 {2,001) -
) RN
Lease.expenses {11,305) - - -
i
- - - Research & development {1,369,147) {541,165} - -
; writeddwn loans to recoverable amounts 46,134 (46,134} (7,223,197) (9,672,076)
IR T
i Goodwill on consolidation written off - (8,150,091} - -
b1 IRen Lex;l)gp_s% _ (162,788) (55.422) (3,700) -
: Travel expenses- {288,792) (115,248) (57.555) -
i
T TPro res.'d?nal'ifees {767,732) (224,275) (493,538) (33,762)
Other expenses from ordinary activities {550,816) (189,200) {72,564) (14,344)
B T T
ERIDF.IT_(LOSlS},F.ROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
11 | BEFORE INCOME YAX EXPENSE (6,097,309)  (10,307.767)  (7,957,748)  (9,779,772)
i ]
: ENGIOME-TA)l(-EX?ENSE RELATING TO 4 - - - -
| .l __| ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
I ‘
PROFIT. (LOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
- : "7 TTAFTER INCOME TJ\X EXPENSE {6,097,309) {10,307,767) {7,957,748) (9,779,772)
~ W'M NET PROFIT] (LOSS) . (6,097,309) (10.307,767] (7,957,748) (9,779,772}
i
"""‘f NE]F'PROFITI(LOSS} ATTRIBUTABLETO
A i [ S .MEMBERS OF THE PARENT ENTITY 18 (6,097,309) (10,307,767 {7,957,748) (9,779,772)
TOTAL CHANGES IN EQUITY OTHERTHAN
T =T THOSE RESU!.TING FROM TRANSACTIONS
i WITH- OWNERS AS DWNERS ATTRIBUTABLE
U T __TOIMEMBERS OF THE PARENT ENTITY 16,097,309) {10,307,767) (7,957,748) (9,779,772)
| Bagitea rriiﬁés"rsefs'h'a‘lfa(‘cénts'per share} (2.3) (51.0)

ke TR ST

- —

. The st Stmemem o! Frnancm! Performance is to be read in conjunction with the Notes fo the Financial Statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

|

2005 2004 2005 2004
$ 5 ] $

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash assets 2,648,491 485,730 1,777,196 -
Receivables 5 42,864 112,562 16,321 10,125
Inventories 6 16,308 30,073 - -
Other 7 10,166 298 61 15
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,717,829 628,663 1,795,578 10,140
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables 8 - - 30,777 975,005
Property, plant and equipment 1 882,387 678,483 10,303 -
Self-generating and regenerating assets’ 30 344,498 - 344,498 -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,226,885 678,483 385,578 975,005
TOTAL ASSETS 3,944,114 1,307,146 2,179,156 985,145
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables 13 740,360 1,554,161 380,101 736,30
Interest-bearing liabilities 14 23,904 832,873 - 830,129
Provisions 15 42,110 23,284 - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 806,374 2,410318 380,101 1,566,430
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing liabilities 16 2,786 222,243 - 216,136
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,786 222,243 - 216,136
TOTAL LIABILITIES 809,160 2,632,561 380,101 1,782,566
NET ASSETS (DEFICIENCY) 31 35,554 (1,325,415} 1,799,055 {797,421)
EQUITY
Parent entity interest
Contributed equity 17 19,536,574 8,982,351 19,536,575 8,982,351
Retained profits/(Accumulated losses) 18 (16,401,020) (10,307,766) (17,737,520) (9,779.772)
Tatal parent entity interest in equity 3,135,554 (1,325415) 1,799,055 {797,421)
TOTAL EQUITY {DEFICIENCY) 3,135,554  {1,325415} 1,799,055 (797,421}

The Staterment of Financial Position is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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- Statement of Cash Flows

I
i
T CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
. ReFeipts from customers 5,110 9,814 - 1,181
‘| PS‘;Fnents to suppliers and employees (6,252,842} {1,287.560) (685,770) (51,864
e 1_5:;;dend received 384 - . :
~Interest received 160,059 28,758 18,066 21,186
N Bo;‘rrowing costs (7.643)  (23,015) (7.643)  (23015)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM/A(USED IN)
- “"'i’ OPERATING ACTIVITIES 19(a) (5,094,932} (1,272,003} (675,347) (52,512)
5. ' CASH I%LOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Puircha§e ofiproperty, plant and equipment (417,755) (735,502) - - -
Ty , PTT‘lr'ch‘é'st 'o_fiself-generating and regenerating assets [45,955) - {45,955) -
I _i _Eulrg’hkage.Qf:sharleslacquisition of subsidiary - {1,273.435) - (1,333,001)
X Admnées‘td‘employees - {632) - -
! i
T Al -;\d\;;nc‘es td related parties and subsidiaries - - - (2,485,401)
T i f Reipaynjlent-iof advances to related parties - (64,487} - -
|I il Pu"rcha;e of‘&cont'rolled entity - 152,024 - -
— E : NET CASH FLOWS EROM/(USED IN)
- o lNVESTING ACI'I RTIES {463,710} (1.9_22.032) {45,955) (3.618.402)
! ' CA15H FLO\rl'S FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
U SN A SO NN NN SRS S .
— E sugs{of_ordmary shares 10,095,916 2,598,417 10,095,916 - 2598417
“, "Payme;n ofisharussue costs - (593,921)  (644,746) (5939211  (644,746)
i __E Proceeds flom bnrrowmgs other {780,592) 1,726,094 (7.003,497) 1,717,243
.....,,é. —-—!*-—W-*NET -GASH- FLOWS FROM/{USED IN}
B _i - ; e FmANCING’Acnvas _3. 8,721,403 3,679,765 2,498,498 . . 3,670,914
Wl'_m“ NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HELD 2,162,761 485,730 1,777,196 -
T ‘ Ac;;i‘o;)emng z;shubr;;.g.l:: f;rward 485,730 - - -
et B '"'CLOS|NG CASH§CARRIED% FORWARD 19{b) 2,648,491 485,730 1,777,196 -

p e -

B I i

+ +

H
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i
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING POLICIES
{a) Basis of accounting

The finandial report is a general purpose financial report
which has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 which includes
applicable Accounting S5tandards. Other mandatory
professional reporting requirements (Urgent Issues Group
Consensus Views) have also been complied with.

The financial report has been prepared in accordance with
the historical cost convention, .

(b) Changes in accounting polides and accounting period

There have been no changes in the accounting policies for
the period beginning 1 July 2004 and ending 30 June 2005.

The accounting policies adopted were adopted for the first
time last year, being the first financial statements prepared
since incorporation of the company on 17 March, 2003.
Consequently, the comparative figures in the financial
statements reflect the results of the operations of the
Ecanomic Entity for the period beginning 17 March, 2003
and ending 30 lune 2004,

{c) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are those of the
consolidated entity, comprising Living Cell Technologies Ltd
(the parent entity] and all entities which Living Cell
Technologies Ltd controlled during the year and at
balance date.

Information from the financial statements of subsidiaries is
included from the date the parent company obtained
control until such time as control ceases. Where there is loss
of control of a subsidiary, the consolidated financial
statements include the results for the part of the reporting
period during which the parent company had control.

Subsidiary acquisitions are accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the parent entity, using consistent
accounting policies. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies which may exist.

All intercompany balances and transactions, including
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions, have
been eliminated in full, Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless costs ¢cannot be recovered,

(d) Foreign currencies
Translation of foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreigh currencies of entities within the
consolidated entity are converted to local currency at the
rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items that are outstanding at the
reporting date are translated using the spot rate at the end of
the financial year.

Translation of financial reports of overseas operations

All overseas operations are deemed integrated as each is
financially and operationally dependent on Living Cell
Technalogies Ltd, The financial reports of overseas
operations are translated using the temporal rate method
and any exchange differences are recognised as revenues or
expenses in net profit or loss.

{e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand and in banks and short-term deposits are
stated at nominal value.

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash FHows, cash
includes cash on hand and in banks, and money market
investments readily convertuble to cash within 2 working
days, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are carried at the principal amount.Interest is
charged as an expense as it accrues,

{f) Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original
invoice amount less a provision for any uncollectable debts.
An estimate for doubtfu! debits is made when collection of
the full amount is nc longer probable. Bad debts are written-
off asincurred.

Bills of exchange and promissory notes are measured at the
lower of cost and net realisable value,

(g} Investments

Non-current investments are carried at the lower of cost and
recoverable amount. The carrying amount of non-current

investrents is reviewed annually by directors to ensure that it
is notin excess of the recoverable amount of these investments.

{h) Inventories
Inventories consist of materials used in laboratory testing
and are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

{i} Recoverable Amount

Non-current assets measured using the cost basis are not
carried at an amount above their recoverable amount and




——1- where a carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount, the

asset is written down.

(G} Property, plant and equipment

“Cost and valuation

.All classes of property, plant and equipment are measured
at cost.

i
_Deqrecmtron

-
Diepreciation is provided on a diminishing value basis.on all

-property, plant and equipment,
i
b 2005 2004
Leasehoild improvements 9.5% 95%
ot 4 L plant and equipment 15%-31% 15%-31%
: ; Motor-vehicles 26% 26%
e wmemiem - Furhiture and fittings 9% - 26% 9% - 26%
} Office equipment 11%- 48% 119 - 48%
|
_"i i k) L'eastes"

Leases are classaf ed at their inception as either operating or

finance Ieases “based on the economic substance of the

agieerment o as to reflect the risks and benefits incidental

b b

1o gwn rship-~--—

—Operdting leases’”

The minimum lease payments of operating teases, where the

lessor ffectlveiy retains substantially all of the risks and

| AR
benafits of ownershlp of the leased item, are recognised as

-an-expense on a .tralght line basis.

anlmce easés

i
Lpa[ses which effe ctivé]y transfer substantialty all of the risks

and benefi ts incidental to ownership of the leased item to

the graup are capu:ahsed at the present value of the

minimum fease pa inits and disclosed as property, plant

X ]
——and-equipment undel; lease. A lease liability of equal value is

als ,rewgmsed,,Capltallsed lease assets are depreciated
ovér th shorter of the estimated useful life of the assets and

the’I lease terrn IMinimum lease payments are allocated

between mterest expense and reduction of the lease

Tl 1ility wnh ‘the” |nterest expense calculated using the
—-.«--fwinterest»rate lmphcﬂiln the lease and charged directly to

i th |Stal«’ment of Fmancnal Performance.
i
i

T The cost"of Tmproverk‘\ents'to or on leasehold property is
i-capitalised, ;dlsdosed as-leasehold improvements, and

[ERNVANPUS JUUSI . S

v - i = R

amortised over the unexpired period of the lease or-the
estimated useful lives of the improvements, whlchever is
the shorter,

(I} Intangibles
Goodwill

Goodwill tepresents the excess of the purchase consideration
over the fair vatue of identifiable net assets acquired at the
time of acquisition of a business or shares in a controlled
entity. Goodwill arising on the purchase of the LCT Products
Group was charged to prafit/{loss) from ordlnary actmnes
before income tax in the period ending 30 June 2004.

{m) Payables

Liabilities for trade creditors and other amounts are carried
at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be'paid
in the future for goods and services received, whether or not
bhilled to the consolidated entity,

Payables to refated parties are carried at the principal
amount. Interest, when charged by the lender, is recognised
as an expense on an accrual basis.

{n) Interest-bearing liabilities

All loans are measured at the principal amount. Interest is
charged as an expense as it accrues.

Finance lease liability is determined in accordance with the

requirements of AASB 1008 "Leases".

{o) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the economic entity has a

legal, equitable or constructive abligation to make-a future -

sacrifice of economic benefits to other entities as a result of
past transactions or other past events, it is probable that a
future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

{p} Contributed equity

Issued and paid up capital is recognised at the fair value of
the consideration received by the company. Any transaction
costs arising on the issue of ordinary shares are recognised
directly in equity as a reduction of the share proceeds received.

(q) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that

the economic benefits will low to the entity and the
revenue can be relizbly measured.




[r) Taxes

Tax-effect accounting is applied using the liability method
whereby income tax is regarded as an expense and is
calculated on the accounting profit after allowing for
permanent differences. To the extent timing differences
occur between the time items are recognised in the financial
statements and when items are taken into account in
determining taxable income, the net related taxation benefit
or liability, calculated at cutrent rates, is disclosed as a future
income tax benefit or a provision for deferred income tax.

The net future income tax benefit relating to tax losses and
timing differences is not carried forward as an asset unless
the benefit is virtually certain of being realised.

Where assets are revalued no provision for potential capital
gains tax has been made.

Goods and Services Tax {GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of GST except:

+ where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and
services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as
applicable; and

* receivahles and payables are stated with the amount of
GSTincluded.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority is incdluded as part of receivables or
payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are included in the Staternent of Cash Flows on a
gross basis and the G5T component of cash flows arising
from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable
fram, or payable to, the taxation authority are classified as
operating cash flows. Commitments and contingencies are
disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, ar
payable to, the taxation authority.

(s} Employee benefits

Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a
result of employees rendering services up to the reporting
date.These benefitsinclude wages and salaries, annual leave,
and long service leave.

Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, annual
leave and any other employee benefits expected to be
settled within twelve months of the reporting date are
measured at their nominal amounts based on remuneration
rates which are expected to be paid when the fiability is setled,

All gther employee benefit liabilities are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflow to be
made in respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date.

In determining the present value of future cash outflows,
the market yield as at the reporting date on naticnal
government bonds, which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related liability, are used.

Employee benefit expenses and revenues arising in respect
of the following categories:

+ wages and salaries, non-monetary benefits, annual leave,
long service leave, and other leave benefits are charged
against profits on a net basis in their respective categories.

{t) Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated as net profit/{loss) attributable to
members, adjusted 1o exdlude costs of sefvicing equity
{other than dividends), divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element.

{u) Research and development costs

Currently, research and development costs as incurred are
charged to profit/loss) from ordinary activities before
income tax as reascnable doubt exists that sufficient future
benefits will be derived so as to recover the costs.
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—r 2_REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
Revenues from operating activities
Revenue from sale of goods 4,542 791 3,469 -
| i
-—}-Revenues from non-operating activities
Management fees - - 17,115 -
N ';"’Diiiiden'ds and distributions
{ | Other related parties
¢! Other corporations 384 - - -
1 T 0
w 1..i. 4 Total dividends and distributions 384 - - -
e Ltrest-
b
~T T T TOther persons/corporations 160,059 28,758 18,066 21,186
| e e————
“' l ! Total interest 160,059 28,758 18,066 21,186
~ 177 i otherincome 60,870 71.923 60,584 2,023
S i_fg_t?lrg\if_en_gigs from non-operating activities 221,313 100,681 95,765 23,209
i
- ; t Total revenues from ordinary activities 225,855 101,472 99,234 23,209
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2005 2004 2005 2004
® $ ] $ $
3, EXPENSES AND LOSSES/(GAINS)
(A} Expenses
Depreciation of non-current assets
. Plant and equipment 62,679 23,802 - -
Leasehold improvements 39,964 - 67 -
Motor vehicles 1,474 835 - -
Office fumiture and equipment 35,845 10,843 - -
Furniture, fixtures and fittings 6,656 18.391 55 -
® Total depreciation of non-current assets 146,558 5387 122 -
Borrowing costs expensed
Interest expense 7,643 23,015 7,643 23,015
Total borrowing costs | 7,643 23,015 7,643 23,015
. Decrement in value of non-current assets ) (46,134) 8,196,225 7,223,197 9,672,076
consists of the following:
{i) Goodwill on Consolidation Written Off
(refer 3 {a)) - 8,150,091 - -
{ii) Provision for Diminution in Value of Loans {refer 3 (b))
9 - Subsidiary companies - - 7,223,197 1510395
- Director-related entities {46,134) 46,134 - -
(iii) Provision for Diminution in Value of Investment
- Subsidiary Company (refer 3 (c}) - - - 8161681
® Total decrement in value of non-current assets {46,134) 8,196,225 - 9,672,076

{a) Goodwill on Consolidation Written Off represents the net cost of intangible assets comprised in the acquisition of LCT
" Products Pty Ltd (formerly Living Cell Technologies Pty Ltd) on 15 January, 2004, The intangible assets represented accumulated

research, development and product development costs incurred by Diatranz Ltd prior to the acquisition of the business by
LCT Products Pty Ltd on 17 October, 2003 and subsequent costs incurred to 15 January, 2004

L] {b) Provision for Diminution in Value of Loans represents funds advanced to subsidiary/associated companies for research,
development and product development and at period end not represented by tangible assets.
{c} Provision for Diminution in Value of Investments - Subsidiary Company represents the intangible assets included in
LCT Products Pty Ltd on acquisition on 15 January, 2004 as referred to in (a) above.

(B} Losses/(gains)

@ Net loss/{gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment . - 3,149 - -
Net foreign currency (gains)flosses (47,644) 16,537 (3,870) -
®
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®
1 2005 2004 2005 2004
$ $ o $ . $ .
- I
@ o The pnma facue tax/(benef‘ t), usmg tax rates
appllcable in the country of operation, on profit/(loss}
nd extraordinary items differs from the income
ax/(benef t) provided in the financial statements
i as follows
n bﬁma facie tax/{benefit) on profit/{loss} .
® from ordlnary actlvities (1,855,230} (3,092,330} ~ {2,387,325) {2,933,932) ‘
- 651,539 - - -
'*Beductlble capital expenditure (38,939) (38,879) . 138,939) {38,879)
® ——Htnre lised foreign exchange gains (7,835) 7.272 {16,363} -
; :——uerte- downs to recoverable amounts - 2,458,868 2,166,959 2,901,623
m«—ww—m——Tax effect of timing differences 5,352 - - -
Other(ltems {net) 5663 © 9367 431 -
: Wnte off futiure income tax benefit due to lack of
. TR wrtual certamty 1,890,989 4,163 275,237 . 71,188
AAAAAA L Inc_ome ‘tax eFxpe:nsel(beneﬁt) attributable to )
| | ordinary act vutiegs_n X - - - -
.................. 5 RE—EEIVABi.és (C_URRENTI
® N SO ~---'-Trade debtors-----» FEEN 5(b) 7,646 132 7.204 -
T Sundry Habtar 5(b) 5,529 6,592 647 -
Goods and <f:rwi:tes T;-{; receivable - . #,470 10,125
: )
R S e Loans to dm‘ctori refated entity 26 - 18,353 - T -
® ; Other recewable.-'s 5(b) 29,689 87,485 - -
P ' ! , 42,864 12,562 16,321 10,125
A R -
i R g'"(ahTota]l rel?ted party receivables
] i P
i leector-related =ntitges i )
Y " Pancell Ltd I 26 - 18353 - -
! ‘
H
T : {b) Terms aléld c?nditlons
e o | N
r . (l)Trade debitors are n non- mterest bearing and generally on 30 day terms.
i (u) Sundry debtors and other recewables are non-interest bearing and have repayment terms between 30 and 90 days.
@ ..o ang oerre y 4
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o ¥ . SEARENTICOMBANYIENEE
2005 2004 2005 2004
$ $ $ $
6. INVENTORIES (CURRENT}
@ . Raw materials and stores
Stores at cost 16,308 30,073 - -

16,308 30,073 - -

Total inventories at lower of cost and

net realisable value 16,308 30,073 - -
o 7.OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments ' 10,105 283 - -
Other current assets 61 15 61 15
10,166 298 61 15
. 8. RECEIVABLES (NON-CURRENT)
Loans to director refated entity - PanceliLtd 26 - 46,134 - -

Related party receivables

Wholly-owned group

® . - controlled entities 26 - - 8,764,369  2,485401
- provision for diminution 26 - {46,134) {8,733,592) (1,510,396)
- . - (46,134} 30,777 975,005

- - 30,777 975,005

9. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON-CURRENT)

. Investments at cost comprise:
Shares
Controlled entities - unlisted 10 . - 8,161,681 8,161,681
Provision for dirminution in value
of investment , 3(0) . - (8,161.681) (8,161,681)
®
10.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(e Prtemg & EquityJnterest BN mmm’« . o
2 L cnsnl!dat il . A
2005 2004 2005 2004
® LCT Products Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 8,161,681 8,161,681
LCT Australia Pry Ltd Australia 100 100 - -
Living Cell Technologies -
New Zealand ttd New Zealand 100 100 - -
{formerly Diotranz New Zealond Ltd, nome change effective 10 February, 2005)
. LCT BioPharma fnc. USA ' 100 100 - -
Fac8Cell Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 - -
DiaBCell Pty Ltd Australia 100 1o - -
Neurotrophin Cell Pty Ltd  Australia 100 100 - -
. 8,161,681 8,161,681
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: 4 SRl PR RENTCOMPAN Y]
2005 2004
L $ $
T
PY 11.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
__+__.___PROPERTY
g t Ledsehold improvements
— At cost 457,477 418393 7,707 -
* 44 Accumulated amortisation (71,471)  (29,843) {66) -
. + 3 - - + R B
L . 11(a) 386,006 388,550 7,641 -
__l,__L____TJ_ N , '
. ogal Ieraseho!d improvements 386,006 388,550 7,641 -
—— - =
L. . PLANT,AND EQUIPMENT
9 '—T Plar-lt—&?nachinery
T At cost 458,245  238,i04 - -
T T T Accumulated depreciation (97,214) (32,856) . -
11(a) 361,031 205,248 - -
[ N Y
Coreowe :-M?torvehiéles
® —— F—i—Avcoty- 6,536 6140 - -
S e o Accunulagteddepreciation (2.538) {1,065) - -
b 11(a) 3,998 5,075 . .
' fice'equi;:men;t*
® At cost 1] 114,281 63,371 - .
A\ccumulated depreciation (45,398} (9,277) - -
T Tt 11{a) 68,883 54,004 - -
Fu niture,ﬁTtures and fittings
: ; .!igt_cg_t : ) 72,324 28,569 2,717 -
® i . Accumulated depreciation {9,855) (3,053) (55) .
: 1) 62,469 25516 © 2,662 -
al plant and e‘quip ment 496,381 289,933 2,662 -
i :
al property, p ant»gnd equipment
e e —Gost : 1,108,863 754577 10,424 -
— 4= —iﬁ-l\ccumula}ted c*eprsl.-ciati}:)n and amortisation (226,476) (76,094) {121) -
© et~ Tolat writtef dowm amount ™ 882,387 678,483 10,303 -
- e L S
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®
2005 2005
s 1
@ ' 11.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont'd)
{a) Reconciliations
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the
current financial year.
® Property
Leasehold Improverments
Carrying amount at beginning 388,550 -
Additions 4,387 -
Additions through acquisition of entities / operations 2,708 7,708
Depreciation expense (39,964) {67}
* Net foreign currency movements arising from self-
sustaining foreign operation 25,325 -
386,006 7.641
Plant and Equipment
Plant and machinery
@ Carrying amount at beginning 205,248 -
Additions 206,194 -
Depreciation expense {62,679) -
Net foreign currency movements arising from self-
sustaining foreign operation 12,268 -
361,031 -
[
Motor vehicles
Carrying amount at beginning 5,075 -
Depreciation expense {1,414) -
Net foreign currency movements arising from self-
sustaining foreign operation 337 -
@ 3,998 -
Office equipment
Carrying amount ar beginning 54,094 -
Additions 46,303 -
Depreciation experse {35,845) -
® Net foreign currency movements arising from self-
sustaining foreign operation 4,31 -
68,883 -
Furniture, fixtures and fittings
® Carrying amount at beginning 25,516 -
Additions 35,262 -
Additions through acquisition of entities / operations 2,217 2,717
Depreciation expense (6,656) (55)
Net foreign currency movements arising from self-
sustaining foreign operation 1,630 -
® 62,469 2,662
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e R O ST Y St i } P
¢ ST o SN - 01 M CETV g RARENT(COMPANY S
ORI SUNIE T 2005 2004 2005 2004
i
. $ . § $ $
B 12I.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
® ___l _ Fu:tufe income tax benefit - - - -
Future income tax benefits not brought to account,
the benefits of which will only be realised if the
cgi')ditions for deductibility set out in Note 1 {r} occur
-"timir)g differences - 7,684 - -
® i ~taxlosses 2,223,431 332,442 346,424 71,188
. o 2,223,431 340,126 346,424 71188
—— A
13]. PAYABLES {CURRENT)}
- Trefde cireditors 634,112 644,318 127,463 65,323
Ol{her.cfreditors 106,248 198,116 252,638 -
® _ | | _| Convertiblenotes 13(a) - 670,978 - 670978
Gaoods :and.services tax - 40,749 - -
[ S R B 740360 1554161 380,101 736301
N mAggreg;a(e a:mounts payable to related parties:
® — Other-r;elate:d‘parties
-t — qadditional related parties 26 56,892 - 247,414 -
e S e e e e et B 56,802 - 247,414 -
[ b e
(a)‘Terrfls anid conditions relating to the above financial instruments:
(YA cohveriible 'note of $529,535 which was interest free was held by the David Collinson Family Trust of which David
® I Hmson is’ a trustee David Collinson is a director of Living Cell Technologies Ltd. The convertible note was repayable
within 45 days after a notice of demand is made. The holder had the right convert the outstanding amount at any time 10
e ordmary shares ?t arate of $0.20.0n 25 August 2004 the outstandmg amount was converted to 2,647,675 shares.
!
JONR SR S M,(u}lA cclmvernb!e note of $141,443 which was interest free was held by Michael Yates and Ingrid Yates. Michael Yates is a
rhrector of the company The convertible note was repayable within 45 days after a notice of demand is made.The holder
® ha the nght to;onvert the cutstanding amount at any time to ordinary shares at a rate of $0.20.On 25 August 2004 the
out.standmg amount was converted to 707,214 shares, . -
P .
R B B A T ) INTEREST—BEARENG LIABILITIES (CURRENT)
T | ‘
i
— ~Lease liabili ,_} e 20 23,904 2,744 - -
bV Unisecy r|3r| ‘ ! L ‘i
® [ ! P
OIS Y I SO mnvemble notes iy 14{a) - 830,129 - 830,129
: e f : - 830,129 - 830,129
o e e e i A Tl A 23,904 832,873 - 830129
|
R B _{a) Terms, and condltlons ielatlng to the above financial instruments
® Convlemble notes as at 30 June 2005 were nil. As at 30 June 2004 the convertible notes consisted of the following:
i
T B I (1] Six B Class cnnveruble nctes of $113,354 with an interest rate of 5% per annum convertible to ordinary shares at a rate of
SR S $0.21 and held by. the Avery Foundatlon These 6 notes were paid out, together with interest in August 2004,
i A 4 {u) OneD Class convertuble note of $150,000 with an interest rate of 11% per annum held by Taycol Nominees Pty Ltd. This
—t— !—-——rnme was converted to shares in-August 2004,
1
i b H . . !
® i : :
——.f-.s’ﬁ_. T- _T__._._v._._._.. o e - e
T SR e




® i
15, PROVISIONS (CURRENT)
@ Employee benefits 21 42,110 23,284 - -
' 42,110 23,284 - -
16. INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES (NON-CURRENT}
Lease liability 20 2,786 6,107 - -
Unsecured
@ " - convertible notes 16(a) - 216,136 - 216,136 ‘
I - 2,786 222,243 - 216,136 -
(a) Terms and conditions relating to the above financial instruments
. (i} As at 30 June 2005 convertible notes were nil. As at 30 June 2004 one C Class convertible note of 5216,136 with an
interest rate of 5% per annum convertible to ordinary shares at a rate of $0.21 was held by the Avery Foundation,
o This note was converted to shares in November 2004,
17. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
{a) issued and paid up capital e
Ordinary shares fully paid 19,536,574 8,982,351 19,536,575 8,982,351
Py 19,536,574 8,982,351 19,536,575 8,982,351
{b) Movements in shares onissue
2005 2004
Number of shares $ Number of shares S
Beginning of the financial year 48,672,968 8,982,351 - -
Issued during the year
o - private share issues and
issues to contractors 12,453,682 4,685,146 1,429,566 178,417
- public equity raising 20,022,370 4,004,474 12,100,000 2,420,000
- rights issue 5,694,211 1,138,842 - -
- convertible notes converted 5,175,700 1,045,848 - -
- options exercised 196,750 42,585 - -
® : - purchase of Living Cell Products Pty Ltd - - 35,143,402 7,028,680
- purchase of assets of Pancell .
New Zealand Ltd 625,000 231,250 - -
Transaction costs in capital raising - {593,921) - {644,746)
End of the financial year 92,840,681 19,536,575 48,672,968 8,982,351
L
L
o
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®
H I
A : $ $ $ $
_._.__f T
— —-—*—-**} 18.RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS
et —ie-d Retained profits/{accumulated losses) R T 1Y) {16,401,020) (10307,766) (17,737,520) - (9779772
4 ~" (a) Retained broﬁtsllaécumulatga losses) 7 ' '
— =7 711 Balance at the beginning of year - {10,303,708) - (9.779,772) -
—f-—-- — Net profit/(loss) attributable to members of the
B . economic entity . (6,097,312) (10,307,766) -{7,957,748) - (8,779,772 !
1 B;alance at end of year o {16,401,020) (10307766} (17,737,520} (9,779,772)
PY e — — —_—
T e RN otes IR ECONOMIGENTITY RO RENT] [COMPAN YA
AN T D S f 2005 2004 2005 2004
— 4 ) $ $ $ -
® i
L 19. S'TTEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SR o (a)-Reconciliation of the net profit/(loss) after tax
i cssbon ot — £ the net cash flows from operations
.- 1.1 Lo .Net profit/(loss) (6.097,309) (10,307.766)  (7,957,748) (9.779.772)
@ W—-N'on-cash items
- ' - Depre'iatic‘m of non-current assets 146,558 53,871 122 -
_..'__..-f,_._.“._...DECrer]nent in value of non-current assets 3{A) {46,134) 8,196,225 7,223,197 9,672,076
- Net {profi t}ﬂoss on disposal of property,
_plant and.equigment - - 3,149 - -
Net fofeign, cutr'ency {gains)/losses (47,644) 16,537 - -
® ; Changes in assets and liabilities X
WL il (lncrealse)/decrea e in trade and other recewables 69,698 {95,895) (7.851) -
4 ; ll?rrpa:plfdecrea_.e in.goods and.services
t= 1 - |- texreceivable | L . - - 1,655 (10,140}
..__..'1___:.__.. .....(!ncrease!f.decre asa, m inventory .. .. . , 13,765 {30,073) S -
9 - -%— -%- - b —(Increase}/decre ase: |n prepayments and other
—-*;—-u-:-_é-—cl!mem assiels-——v——~ e {9,868) (283 {46) -
- b ([gea ase)f nerease in trade and other c:ednors (102,074) 825,897 65,324 65,324
——— *i'"—" _(Decrease)ﬁncrease in goods and services tax payable (40,749) 40,749 - -
. (Qecrqase}{ ncrease gn en}pioyee entitlements 18,826 23,284 - -
® '""""! Net cash flow from aperating activities (6,094,931} (1274305 - (675347} (52512
SRR o e
e b %-—(I:I) Re?:onciliation of- cas'h* "
}
- i- -Gash b{alanice compnses
k
o — I‘---}— cashaat bank—-——-—--_«— : 2,648,491 485730 1,777,196 .
-3 C!osnng cash baiam:e*"“"‘ b 2,648,491 485,730 1,777,196 -
® T -

. (c) Acqunsmon of Controlled Entlty
There were no acqunsmons m the 2005 year,

P -

i !
(d) Dasposal offorltrolled Entlty
o There were no disposals In’ thé 2005 financial year.

R T S g_._.,-_,,...._.

®
o i
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20. EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS
@ (a) Lease expenditure commitments
(i) Operating leases (non-cancelflable):
Minimum lease payments 20(c)
- not later than one year 102,939 3Nz - -
- later than one year and not later than five years 411,757 43,978 - -
o -Yater than five years 425,850 4,581 - -
- aggregate lease expenditure contracted for at
reporting date 940,546 86,276 - -
Aggregate expenditure commitments comprise:
Aggregate lease expenditure contracted for at
4 reporting date - 86,276 - -
{ii) Finance leases:
- not later than one year 24,570 4,432 - -
- fater than one year and not later than five years 2,786 6,107 - -
- total minimum lease payments 27,356 10,539 - -
® - future finance charges {666) {1,688} - -
- lease liability 26,690 8,851 - -
- current liability . 23,904 2,744 - -
- non-current liability 2,786 6,107 - -
26,690 8,851 - -
L
Total lease liability accrued for:
Current
- finance leases 23,904 2,744 - -
23,904 2,744 - .
®
Non-Current
- finance leases 2,786 6,107 - -
2,786 6,107 - -
26,690 8,851 - -
e

Notes

(b)The lease of offices and laboratories in Papatoetoe, New Zealand, is a non-cancellable lease with a 5 year term renewable for a
further 5 years and rent payable monthly in advance. Contingent rental provisions require the minimum lease payments shall be
reviewed every Z years.The animal faboratory lease isa non-cancellable lease with a 6 year terrn and a right of renewal for a
further 6 year term, with rent payable monthly in advance. Contingent rental provisions require the minimum lease payments
shall be reviewed every 2 years.

.(¢) The carrying amount of the finance lease assets as at 30 June 2005 is $68,351.{2004:59,703)
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@ 21.EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND SUPERANNUATION COMMITMENTS
P
,H,,.Em;aloyee Benefits
Thél aggregate employee benefit liability is comprised of:
Acc:rued wages, salaries and on costs 33,145 168,455 - -
Pravisions (current) 42,110 23,284 - -
@ .
75,255 191,739 - : -
- Em-plo;ee Share Scheme
Infarmation with respect to the number of options granted under the employee share incentive scheme is as follows:
® . ol 2005 2004
! Number of Weighted average  Numberof  Weighted average
i LA T options exercise price options exercise price
Balance at h?::ginning of year 552,500 0.1 - -
TN o granted 1 21{a) 1,625,000 0.30 552,500 0.21
@ A
— i~ -LBalanceat end of year 2,177,500 0.28 552,500 0.21
et sl SRS et B Sk e 4
; ia){)ptionsgran'ted during the reporting period
o ' The following table summarises information about options granted by Living Cell Technologies Ltd to employees during the year:
—=k- 2005 2004
o Grain‘t date | 15 November 2004 15 January 2004
Vesting date ) N 15 November 2004 15 January 2004
l H
e A Expx"iry date L. 15 November 2011 30 June 2010
Weightad average exercise price $0.30 5021
®
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®

22, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

After balance datethe parent entity completed equity raising totalling $2,300,000 through placement of ordinary shares to

existing shareholders at $0.22 per share. As a result, the group's total equity has changed from $3,135,555 at 30 June, 2005 to an

estimated balance of $5,435,555 after completion of the equity raising as at 9 August 2005,
® The financial effect of the above event has not been recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2005.

E e
2005 2004

®

23 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following refiects the income and share data used in the

calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share:
® Net profit/{loss) {6,097,309) {10,307,767)

Earnings/{lossjused in calculating basic and diluted

earnings/(loss)per share (6,097,309) (10,307,767

Number of Number of
shares "shares

@

Weighted average number of ardinary shares used in

calculating basic earnings per share 83,500,010 20,211,731
@
®
L J
®
®
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24, AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
& _Amuunts received or due and receivable by PKF,
NSW Partnership, the auditor of the parent entity for:
_ - an audit or review of the financial report of the
entity and any other entity in the consolidated entity 61,270 - 61,270 -
’ 61,270 - 61,270 -
® Amounts received or due and receivable by auditors,
other than PKF, NSW Partnership, for:
an-audit or review of the financial report of
--—subsidiary entities 20,695 6,595 - -
! L 81,965 6595 61,270 .
L
. |
—he e 425 ;-Dﬂlaecfon AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES
. Lo
____J _i_ la) Details Pf Directors and Specified Executives
| !
PY ' (i} I;)ire.;ttor:rs
! M chagl Yates Executive Chairman
{ Simon O'Loughlin Non-Executive Director
.y o
: Rd berti Elli({tt ) Medical Director
f David Collil’lnson.' Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
| Rager Coats : Non Exacutive Director
¢ Alfred Vasc?ncellos' Executive Director, President & CEQ LCT BioPharma In¢
fd-
i) Specified executives
] “Richard Justice | Chief Finandal Officer
i Paul Tan ) Manager LCT New Zealand
"""" 1" PafisBrooke "t~ Manager LCT Australia
® I . .
— Michae I_‘r'ates_was_Cﬁairman and Director up to 30 November 2004 when he was appointed as Executive Chairman.
Rager lCoat‘s was Chief Operating Officer (COO} and Director up to 28 February 2005 when he resigned as COQ, remaining
—_—- [ ST S— —— ! - .
asla no[n-ex;ecut ve dﬁrector.
1 - ‘
® - de 4 -Alfred.\lasctzance los was President and CEQ of LCT BioPharma up to 28 October 2004, when he was also appointed as a director.
H 1
Ri‘:hard Justice was éppoiﬁted CFO on 10 Novemnber 2004.
Paris-B ookze-wa s appointed as General Manager LCT Australia Pty Ltd on 1 April 2005,
3 i | . i
o . ..
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P (b) Option holdings of directors and specified executives

@
Directors
Michael Yates - - - 450,000 450,000 450,000 450,000 -
Simon O'Loughlin - - - 150,000 150,600 150,000 150,000 -
fobert Elliott 2,123,300 - - - 2,123,300 2,123,300 - 2,123,300
® David Collinson 2,123,300 - - - 2,123,300 2,123,300 - 2,323,300
Roger Coats 1,498,720 - - - 1,498,720 1,498,720 - 1,498,720
Alfred Vasconcellos - - - 525,000 525,000 525000 525,000 -
Specified Executives
Richard Sustice - - - - - - - -
Paul Tan - - - 300,060 300,000 300,000 - 300,000
® .
Paris Brooke - - - - . - - -
Total 5745320 1,425,000 7,170,320 7,170,320 1,125,000 6,045,320
{c) Shareholdings of Directors and Specified Executives
o EOTUNER 00s . el - 1 Gk
S £ i} 300 uner2005 1N
- Uk AR e H
i RO ] o ] R0 d IR
Directors
Michael Yates - - - 1,033,301 1,033,301
® Simon O’'Loughlin - - - 210,000 210,000
Robert Elliatt 1,862,638 - - - 1,862,638
David Collinson 6,979,981 - - 2,541,311 9,521,352
Roger Coats 169,543 - - 23,457 193,000
Alired Vasconcellos 115,031 - - - 115,031
\ Specified Executives
Richard Justice - - - - -
Paul Tan - - - - .
Paris Brooke - - - - -
Total 9,127,193 3,808,129 12,935,322
@
{d) Loans to directors and specified executives
There have been no loans made to directors of specified executives dunng the year from 1 July 2004 to 30 June 2005.
® {e) Other transactions and balances with directors and specified executives
Services
Mr S Q'Loughlin is a partner of O'Loughlins Lawyers which provided legal services to the economic entity. During the
period from 1 July, 2004 to 30 June, 2005 services rendered by O'Loughlin Lawyers to the economic entity totalled 51,276,
excluding GST {2004 :$35,663).
@
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-26. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

T Director-related entity transactions

Pancell New Zealand Limited whose directors and shareholders
are Robert £lliott, David Collinson and Sandy Ferguson,

| supplied Auckland Island pig cells to the economic entity. The

econumlc entity financed the activities of Pancell New

Zealand Limited with a monthly payment of NZ$12,000.
--An option to purchase the assets or shares of Pancell New

Zealand Lid by the economic entity was signed on 23 April,
2003, with consideration being NZ$300,000 plus GST

inq'réasing by NZ515,000 per month commencing April, 2003.

On! 27 May 2005 the shareholders of Living Cell Technologies

Limited approved and authorised the issue of 625,000

ordlnary shares in the capital of the Company to Pancell New

Zeaiand Limited at 0.37 cents, being $231,250, with the

batance of ‘the purchase price of the assets of Pancell

Nelw Zealand Limited (including the Auckland Island pig herd)
satasﬁed by the repayment of NZ$50,000 in cash {as repayment

ofia Ioa_n_ _from the Company to Pancell New Zealand

Limited,$45,955 in Parent Company Statement of Cash Flows

for:purcﬁaée:‘of self-generating and regenerating assets.)
i

At 30 Jun 2, 2004 amounts of $18,353 (current receivable) and
546 134 (non—current receivable)had been loaned to Pancell

| New Zealand Ltd from the economic entity. A provision for
~di mmu’ilon of $46,134 had been raised against the non-current

receuvable béalange With the effective repayment of this loan
the prowston forjdiminution of $46,134 has been credited in

the perlod endm‘g 30 June, 2005,

— At 30 June 2005 an amount of $56,892 was owing to directers

of. meg Cell Technologles Ltd (David Collinson $47,747 and

Robenﬂllott $9145) being monies previously advanced by
the directors to Fancell New Zealand Limited.

!
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Wholly-owned group transactions

Loans

All loan balances between the companies in the group have
been fully provided for and eliminated on consolldanon

Semce Fee

LCT BioPharma Inc. and Diatranz New Zealand Ltd (formerly
Diatranz New Zealand Ltd) charge LCT Products Pty Ltd 2
service fee based on direct costs incurred and an appropriate
mark up. The financial affect of the service fee has been

" eliminated on consolidation.

Other related party transactions

Services

Mr CR Fennell, formerly Company Secretary, is a partner of
Fennell Allen & Co. Chartered Accountants which provided
accounting, corporate, secretarial, taxation services and
office accommodation to the economic entity.

Mr Fennell has a beneficial interest in'71,527 shares and
247,690 Class A options acquired in part ¢consideration of
services provided.1,232,500 Class B options were acquired
by Mr Fennell from Class 8 option holders.Services
rendered by Fennell Allen & Co.to the economic entity for
the period 17 March, 2003 to 30 June,2004 totalled
$177,8561 (excluding GST).



27. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment products and locations

@ The economic entity operates one business segment of research and development and product development into living cell
technologies. Geographically, the majority of the research and development was performed in New Zealand and the balance was
performed in the USA.The corporate office is focated in Australia.

e
® g - ination sERERgIConsclidated i
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
$ $ $ $ ] $
Segment
revenue 2,677,409 798799 1,647,319 270,142 207,457 100,619 (4,306,330) (1,068,088) 225,855 101,472
o Segment
assets 1,020,243 801,912 322,958 147,032 2,608,903 12,659,084 ~ (12298580} 3,952,104 1,309,448
" Other segment information:
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment. intangible assets and other non-current assets
@ - 732,322 - - 354,922 8,165,336 - {8,161,681) 354,922 735977
Accounting policies
1) Segrnent revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are those directly attributable to the segments.
2} Segment revenues,expenses and results include charges between segments. The prices charged on intersegment transactions
have been made at arms length transaction rates. These transactions are eliminated on consolidation.
®
®
¢
L
®
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® e 28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
N S W .
I 28 {a) Interest rate risk
" The consolidated entity's exposure to interest rate risks and the effective interest rates of ﬁnancnal assets and fi nancnal liabilities,
both recognised and unrecognised at the balance date, are as follows: ‘ - ’
L ;
% {if Financial assets
® T
Cash 2,648,491 485730 - - - - . -
Tra!d_e_and other
‘ Leu’:giva_i_ales - - - - - - - -
i R;Tceiyglgles-director
| related entities - - . - - - - -
@ Total financial assets 2,648,491 485,730 - - - - - -
I
I
T (i Findicial liabilties
e
: Trade credlrors - - - - - - . -
Other cred:t{ors - - - - - - - .
® . Cc!nver}_i_b_le notes
-non-interest bearing - - - - - - - -
oot
Finance lease liability - - 23,904 2744 2,786 6,107 - -
(I ;
Gci;nveqtible‘notés - - - 830,29 - 216,136 - -
Té:tél'ﬁi:'iéhc:ialﬁs_isets . - 23504 832873 2,786 222,243 . .
e R
L] i - e - <
Qi irion ciol HERENESPRLINIE N o v:1ntorest
finstnuments RN Eearing
R 2005 2004
i i 5 $
P TR S
(i) Find#ciat bssets [
¢ Cash | | _ - - 2,648,491 485,730 4.96 420
f 1 :
Trade- ahd otherim 1«
tecelvables . 42,864 94,209 42,864 94,209 - -
Rer.ewablesrdlrncmr.... -
b1 | relatedentities | . - 64,487 - 64,487 - -
g Tn%al.ﬁr;lanc‘alastse:s‘i——:llz,asil 158,696 2,691,355 644,426
—_—— [ T
i (n) Financial lrabu'mes
' | R e
___...____I..__._Tralde ceditors | |..634,112 644,318 634,112 644,318 - -
——t—-Other. credltors - | 106,248 238,865 106,248 238,865 - -
! i
® ——— -Convemble notés - 97 :
i -non -interest beanng 4" 670,978 - 670,978 - -
- .___,_Fmance Ieasel|ab|hty . 5 - . - 26,690 8,851 15.5 15.5
E Converhble noles et oo T - - 1,046,265 - 6.1
i -thal financial |Ia‘blflll}85‘7l40,360 - 1,544,161 767,050 2,609,277
PY _..._.._-_._:-___;...._;... R L =
o g o




29.IMPACT OF ADOPTING AASB EQUIVALENTS
TO IASB STANDARDS

Living Cell Technologies Ltd is preparing and managing the
transition to Australian Equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards (AIFRS) effective for the company's
financial year commencing from 1 july 2004.The adoption of
AIFRS will be reflected in the economic entity's and the
parent entity's financial statements for the year ending 30
June 2006. On first time adoption of AIFRS, comparatives for
the year ending 30 June 2005 are required to be restated.
The majority of AIFRS transitiona! adjustments wil! be made
retrospectively against retained earnings as at 1 July 2004,

The economic entity's management, with the assistance of
external consultants, has assessed the significance of the
expected changes and is preparing for their implementation.
The impact of the alternative treatments and elections
under AASB 1:First Time Adoption of Australian Equivalents
to International Financial Reporting Standards has been
considered where applicable.

The directors are of the opinion that the key material
differences in the economic entity's accounting policies on
conversion to AIFRS and the financial effect of these
differences, where known, are as follows. Users of the
financial statements should note, however,that the amounts
disclosed could change if there are amendments by
standard-setters to the current AIFRS or interpretation of the
AIFRS requirements changes from the continuing work of
the economic entity's AIFRS review process.

Classification of Financial Instruments

Under AASB 133 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, financial assets are required to be dassified

into four categories, which determines the accounting
treatment of the item.

The categories and various treatments are:

- held to maturity, measured at amortised cosy;

- held for trading, measured at fair value with unrealised
gains or losses charged to the profit and loss;

+ loans and receivables, measured at amortised cost; and

+  available for sale instruments, measured at fair value with
unrealised gains or losses taken to equity

The economic entity's financial assets comprise available for
sale financial instruments. Under AASB 139: Financial
Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement, the measurement of
available for sale instruments at fair value differs to current
accounting policy which measures non-current investments
at cost with an annual review by directors to ensure carrying
amounts are not in excess of the recoverable amount of
the instrument.

On the basis that directors have written down the carrying
value of non-current investments in subsidiary entities to nil
{which equate to fair value) there is expected to be no
impact in the conversion ta AIFRS.

Share based payments

Under AASB 2 Share based Payments, the company will be
required to determine the fair value of options issued to
directors, specified executives and employees as remuneration
and recognise an expense in the Statement of Financial
Performance.This standard is not limited to options and also
extends to other forms of equity based remuneration.

During the year the company issued 1,425,000 options to
the directors and specified executives valued at $329,344,

Reconcitiation of Loss :
Net loss for year 1eported under Australian

Accounting Standards (6,097,309} {7,957,748)
Transitional adjustment

Increase in employee benefits (329,344) (329,344)

Net loss under AIFRS (6.426,653) (8,287,092)
Reconciliation of Equity

Total equity under Australian Accounting Standards 3,135,554 1,799,055
Reduction in equity from transiticn to AIFRS (329,344} (329,344)
Equity under AIFRS 2,806,210 1,469,711
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"I 30. SELF-GENERATING AND REGENERATING ASSETS

i 2005 2004 2005 2004
T $ $ $ $

i
EI__ i Animals
i

Pig Herd - at cost 344,498 - 344,498 -
Toéal value of animals 344,498 - 344 498 -
© o} 71 (al|Nature of asset

@ i,

The cog"qgany purchased a herd of Auckland Island pigs which are critical to plans to produce pig cells for xeno-transplantation
because they are free of infectious diseases common with other pig strains and they meet FDA requirements for donors of pig

| .
cells fot human xeno-transplantation.

b} Sigrliiﬁca:nt assumptions

® The Auﬁiﬁfd'island pig herd has been valued at cost and not depreciated, as fair value cannot be reliably measured, given the

i | _hiéhl)‘fs"p"é'éij'aﬁs'ed and unique characteristics of the pig herd.
1 H

)
w oo LThe Directors valuation at cost is consistent with an independent accountant's opinion on the purchase transaction.
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@ i 31 .COMPAéI.Y.D:ETAILS AND ULTIMATE PARENT ENTITY

; . 4
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: Living Cell echnologies Ltd is the ultimate parent entity.
4-wt 4+ Th e-register:ed office of the company is:
R
i )

Living (ellT@echr{blogiés- Limited
[ LevelsINABHouse |
25 Gedrgesueet_ |

Sydney; N5W, 2001 :
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‘B Directors’ Declaration

In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Living Cell Technologies Ltd, 1 state that:
(1} In the opinion of the directors:

{3} the financial statements and notes of the company and of the consolidated entity are in accerdance with the
@ Corporations Act 2001, including:
{i) giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June 2005
and of their performance for the period beginning 1 july 2004 and ended on that date; and
(i} complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2007; and
{b} there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable.

@
(2} The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have each declared that:
{3)  the financial records of the company for the financial year have been properly maintained in accordance with
section 286 of the Corporations Act 2001;
o {b)  the financial statements and notes for the financial year comply with the Accounting Standards; and
{c}  the financial statements and notes for the financial year give a true and fair view.,
{3) In the opinion of the directors, as at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the
members of the Group identified in note 10 will be ahle to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are or may
become subject, by virtue of support provided by the parent company.
o

On behalf of the Board

-
° Witz
| )

Michael Yates
Chairman

-

® Sydney: 13 September 2005
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

www.pkf.com.au

Liability is limited by the Accountants Scheme,

@ Y T T . . . . approved under the Professional Standards Act
To the members of Living Cell Technologies Limited 194 (NSW!

Scape

- The financial report and directors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance, statement of
cash flows, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the directors' declaration for Living Cell Technologies
B Ltd (the company) and the cansolidated entity, for the year ended 30 June 2005. The consolidated entity comprises
both the company and the entities it cantrolled during that year.

The directors of the company are responsible for preparing a financial report that gives a true and fair view of the
o financial position and performance of the company and the consolidated entity, and that complies with Accounting
Standards in Austrafia, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2007,

This includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and intermnal controls that are
designed 1o prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in
the financial report.

Audit approach

We conducted an independent audit of the financial report in order to express an opinion on it to the
members of the company. Qur audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, in order to
i e e provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material misstatement. The nature of an audit
is influenced by factors such as the use of prafessionat judgement, selective testing, the inherent limitations of internat
control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all
material misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in accordance
with the Corporations Act 2001, including compliance with Accounting Standards in Australia, and other mandatory
financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the company's and
the consolidated entity's financial position, and of their performance as represented by the results of their aperations
] and cash flows,
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We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

- examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report, and

* assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates rade by the directors.

While we considered the effectiveness of management's internal controls over financial reporting when determining
the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance on internal controls.
We performed procedures to assess whether the substance of business transactions was accurately reflected in the
financial report, These and aur other procedures did not include consideration or judgement of the appropriateness or
reasonableness of the business plans or strategies adopted by the directors and management of the company.

Independence

We are independent of the company, and have met the independence requirements of Australian
professional ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001. [In addition to our audit of the
financial report, we were engaged to undertake the services disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
The provision of these services has not impaired our independence ]

Audit Opinion
In our opinion, the financial report of Living Cell Technologies Ltd is in accordance with:
(a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

{i} giving a true and fair view of the financial position of Living Cell Technologies L.td and the consolidated
entity at 30 June 2005 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia,

G

PKF
Chartered Accountants & Business Advisers
NSW Partnership

/éw@.

Arthur Milnes
Partner

Sydney: 13 September 2005
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M ASX Additional information

. Additional information required by the Aust_raliaﬁ Stock Exchange Ltd and not shown elsewhere in this report is as foll_ows.'
The information is current as at 31August, 2005.

(a) Distribution of equity securities

The number of shareholders at 31 August 2005 by size of holding,in each class of share are:

: Y- 1,000 2 26,950
i 1001 - 5000 235 689,061
P5001 - 10,000 213 1,862,182
! 10000 - 100,000 592 22,111,751
“100001  andover 124 78,028,373
FRN S U S 1,225 102,718,317

{ The m“J:i'nber of shareholders holding less

¢ th‘:ah”a'z;rnarketable parcet of shares are: 142 200,066

T A
ST N
5 +

(bi Twéznty largest shareholders
Th;e naénes‘?f the twenty largest holders of quoted shares at 31 August, 2005 were:
L gumberofshareshi IR centagelofiordinaryfsharesi
NS
MR GRAEME COLLINSON & MR DAVID COLLINSON 9,627,656 9.4
K ONE WONE LIMITED" 7351435 7.2
© "WESTPAC CUSTODIAN NOMINEES LIMITED ' 4,980,455 49
- ~FOUNDATION SERVICES LTD 4,977,626 49
51 "HUGH GREEN INVESTMENTS LIMITED 3,769,850 37
6"%“*€NZ-I§IOMiNEES-LTD 2,800,636 27
~} 71 ~TAYCOL-NOMINEES PTY LTD 2,094,434 2.0
8-+~ MR MICHAEL-BUSHELL : 2,000,000 20
N } ‘MR ROBERT.BARTLETT ELLIOTT 1,555,538 15
ldWP?IR-Ké;ﬁH-}n—STEWABT & MRS JUDITH A STEWART 1,521,371 1.5
s LE PROPERTIES PTY.LTD 1,475,455 1.4
12, - MR MICHAEL HELYER 140,157 14
13, THE AVERV.FOUNDATION 1,229,808 12
Ll s mR MICHAEL ARTHUR YATES & MRS INGRID MELANIE YATES 1,033,301 10
et L. 415 SOPHIADAWES. .. . 1,000,000 10
"‘“""‘"‘“‘7{ Jﬁ;.- J‘v;‘,,COPEEf% NOMINEES PTY LTD 1,000,000 10
. w7 NUTSVILLEPYYLTD 1,000,000 10
el 108 sYMGTONPTYUD 730,000 07
. - ; .‘.?i MR GEOFFREY ?E!.E,BJ?}!;QT&MR DENIS PETER LANE 625,864 05
i 20__ GREENSLADE HOLDINGS PTY LTD 625,000 06
R - 50,798,586 497
i i : 3 U 1




(c) Substantial shareholders

‘——l.
=

The names of substantial shareholders who have notified the Company in accordance with section 671B of the Corporations Act

2001 are;

e

MR GRAHAM COLLINSON MR DAVID COLLINSON

K ONEW ONE LIMITED

{d) Voting rights

All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restriction.

9,627,656

7,351,435
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B Corporate Information

- ABN 14 104 028 042

Directors

Michael Yates (Executive Chairman)

Simon O'Loughlin
{Non-Executive Director)

flobert Elliott (Medical Director)

David Collinson (Executive Director and
o Chief Executive Officer)

Roger Coats (Non Executive Director)

Y Alfred Vasconcellos
o e (Executive Director, President & CEO LCT
‘ BioPharma tnc)

Company Secretary
Nick Geddes

l T Registered Office

i Australian Company Secretaries Pty Ltd
¢ ‘ Level 5, NAB House

I 255 George Streel

Voo Sydney NSW 2001

. Principal Place of Business
T Suite 2.11 Pacific Tower
737 Burwood Road
L T Hawthorn VIC 3122

Solicitors

Johnson, Winter & Slattery
211 Victoria Square

. Adelaide SA 5001

‘ Bankers

i ' ANZ Bank Ltd

13 Grenfell Street
Adelaide SA 5000

Sy Share Register
. Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd
e Level 5,115 Grenfell Street

Adelaide 5A 5000

Auditors

PKF

Level 10,1 Margaret Street
Sydney NSW 2002

® P Internet Address

; - www.lctglobal.com I i: ND
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